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Kelso Technologles Inc.
CEQ’'S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Twelve Months Ended August 31, 2006

Description of Business

The Company is engaged in the development, marketing, selling, and licensing to manufacture
various types of pressure relief valves that are initially designed to be installed on railroad tank
cars which carry hazardous and non-hazardous commodities. The first of a series of valves, Kelso's
JS75 is a patented pressure relief valve: that is an external valve, which has specific advantages
over the current class of internal pressure relief valves,

-The JS75 falls under the regulations of the Association of American Railroads {"AAR"). The AAR is
the self-governing body for the railroad industry in North America, which requires certain -products,
including the 3575, to be installed on railroad tank cars and satisfactorily complete a two year
service trial prior to commercialization.

In order to enter the service trial, the Company had to install 1575 pressure relief valves on thirty
tank cars. Under a signed Agreement with Terra International, Inc. (dated September 5, 2001),
Kelso, on March 15, 2002, concluded installation of all thirty of its JS75 valves on Terra’s tank cars
which it leased from Union Tank Car Company. Those cars traveled extensively throughout all of
North America.

On November 14, 2003, Kelsc compieted the final year of the two years required for the AAR
Service Trial. The Company is pleased to report that over the two years, the service trial cars
traveled approximately 4 million miles, well in excess of the 275,000 miles required by the AAR
regulations for service trials. Kelso therefore substantially exceeded AAR requirements. In
January of 2004, Kelso met with an AAR Observer at an independent AAR-certified, railroad repair
facility and conducted the required AAR teardown of five Kelso )S75 valves that were in the service
trial. Once the successful teardown was completed, Kelso submitted a complete dossier to the
Director of the AAR Tank Car Committee for the Committee’s subsequent review and approval. On
February 23, 2004, Kelso announced that the AAR had certified Kelso's 1575 Pressure Relief Valve
for use on 75 pound general purpose tank cars carrying hazardous commodities. As a result, Kelso
had the ability from that point forward to sell its valves for use on all 75 pound general purpase
tank cars traveling throughout North America and carrying both hazardous and non-hazardous
commoaodities, The certification also ended the two years AAR Service Trial.

On May 27, 2004, Kelso announced that it was engaged in significant, in-depth discussions with
major companies that would assist Kelso in entering the commercial phase with its 1575 Prassure
Relief Valve with regard to the rail industry.

- On January 10, 2005, Kelso announced it had signed a Joint Marketing and Development
Agreement with North America’s largest tank car lessor, Union Tank Car Company (Chicago) and
its affiliate, McKenzie Valve and Machining Company {Tennessee). Unicn Tank Car Company, along
with its wholly-owned Canadian affiliate, Procor Limited, leases approximately 85,000 rail tank cars
around North America. Union also manufacturers tank cars for the rail industry. Both Union and
Procor own several railroad repair and maintenance facilities in North America. All of Union’s and
Pracor’s clients are potential customers for sales of Kelso's )S line of pressure relief valves
beginning with the J575.

With the signing of the Agreement, McKenzie became Kelso's North American manufacturer of the
Kelso 1S line of pressure relief valves.
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Kelso Technologies Inc.
CEO’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A NALYSIS
Twelve Months Ended August 31, 2006

The Agreement was the second, most significant event at that time, next to the invention of the
JS75 valve. With-Union’s 114 plus years in- the-rail industry, its marketing expertise was deemed
to be a major-asset in assisting Kelso as it entered sales. In early January 2005, Kelso anticipated
that sales and delivery of small quantities of its JS75 pressure relief valves would begin during the
fall of 2005 which they did.

On February-14, 2005, Kelso announced that it-was working on-its Business Plan that was designed
to lay.the foundation for raising-the necessary funds to finance Kelso so it could properly begin
commercialization. The, news release went on to mention that Kelso’s manufacturer, McKenzie
Valve and.Machining Company was in the process of costing the components to manufacture the
Kelso 1575.

Kelso worked with McKenzie on the development of the low flow JS75 and undertook two flow tests
at.a specialized laboratory in Ohio and final flow testing of three of its production valves in the fall
of 2006 at an independent, high-pressure testing laboratory in Colorado. Following the testing,
Kelso submitted a dossier to the AAR-to obtain AAR “certification so that it could begin sales as
quickly as possible: " That process is underway currently..

On February 28, 2005, Kelso announced that its shareholders had adopted the 2005 Stock Option
Plan for Kelso’s employees, officers and directors. The plan was no different than previous Option
Plans annually approved by.shareholders prior to the 2005 Plan. It is a securities requirement
that, each year, the shareholders.of 2 public company have the right to vote on whether their
Company can offer a Stock Option Plan for those working for the- Company. The importance of
having a Stock Option Plan approved by shareholders each year, as required by the TSX Venture
Exchange, cannot be underestimated. The Stock Option Plan_is_critical to attracting and
maintaining key people to contribute to Kelso’s growth through sales and marketing as
well as R&D of its_prototypes for the rail.and eventually far other industries. As is
required annually, shareholders-will be asked to voteto approve the 2006 Stock Cption Plan-at the
2006 AGM, . .

On March 2, 2005, Kelso announced that it planned to arrange a prlvate placement in hopes of
securing up to $500,000. On April 21, 2005, Kelso announced the closing of the private placement
for a total of $469,900. The funds have been used for general working capital as well as for special
projects ncluding attending the AAR Bureau of Explosives Seminar (BOE), the filming and final
production-of both a:sales and marketing video, as well as a maintenance video for repair facilities
around North America, for advertising in Progressive Rallroading 'magazine (circulation 25,000) and
other projects related to the marketing and sales as well as R&D of Kelso’s products.

. On May 24 & 25, 2005, Kelso debuted its JS75 Stainless Steel Pressure Relief Valve at the Bureau
of Explosives Semijnar (BOE) In Kansas City, Missouri. It was its first presence at a trade show
since its stainless steel version of its 1575 was certified by the AAR. Kelso was extremely pleased
with the reception it recelved during the intensive two-day trade show and seminar where Kelso's
valve stood out at the exhibit as “the highlight of the show"” accordlng to many who visited Kelso's
exhibit. . .

The rail industry rarely sees innovation but clearly witnessed an exciting innovation in the form of
Kelso’s JS75 valve technology during the two days. Kelso's marketing and sales video CD was
continuously played to an interested audlence of observers, copies of the CD and other product
literature was handed out and numerous questions answered.

The BOE presence culminated in subsequent sales to large corporate customers as well as in the
creation of awareness within the rail industry that Kelso had product for sale.
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Kelso Technologies Inc.
CEOQ’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Twelve Months Ended August 31, 2006 )
w

.As of July 31, 2005, Stephen L. Grossman vacated the position of President & CEQO of Kelso

Technologles Inc. but continued as a Director of Kelso Technologies Inc and as Chalrman of Kelso's
Board. - ‘ :

As of August 1, 2005, Kelso announced the appointment of John L. Carswell to the position of
President & CEQ of Kelso Technologies Inc. effective August 1, 2005 Mr. Carswell served as a
senior officer of Kelso Technologies Inc. for-the over nine years and as a Director for over ten
years.- Mr. Carswell continued to work on all aspects of saies and .marketing, R&D and company
administration as part of the smalt Kelso Team.

Mr. Grossman, an American citizen, worked for Kelso in Canada for eleven years under Canadian
Worker Permits. Due to the Worker Permit’s expiry on July 31, 2005 and the need to commercialize
Kelso’s technology in the United States, Mr. Grossman relocated-his residence to the United States
and began setting up Kelso’s wholly-owned subsidiary to serve the North American rail markets —
Kelso Technologies (U.S.A.) Inc. is a Nevada incorporated company. On August 23, 2005, it was
announced that Mr. Grossman was appointed President & CEQO and Director of the US subsidiary.

On August 30, 2005, following-extensive- efforts that continued: after the May 2005 Bureau Of
Explosives Seminar, Kelso successfully- announced its first ever sale of its JS75 pressure relief valve
to a worldwide, US-based Chemical Manufacturer and Fleet Operator with their headquarters in
Germany. The landmark sale is further confirmation of the industry’s endorsement of Kelso’s
innovative technology-for use in the transport -of:various commodities. The buyer has a diverse
product mix ranging from chemlcals to polymers ‘to andustnal coatmgs “with' annual sales in the
billions. LR S :-

On September 12, 2005, Kelso announced that it had. entered into @ new investment banking
advisory agreement with a Toronto- based securities company to provide ongoing financial advisory
and related -services including arranging financing on a best efforts basis. Efforts continued
through the fall without success. Kelso, however, is still in discussions with numerous other
individuals and/or groups in Canada, ;the US, the UK and India regarding funding. It became
apparent to Kelso management that until the-Company successfully sold a number of its valves into
the rail industry, it would not have demonstrated the "acceptance within the industry that would
make it an attractive venture to fund. Kelso continues with its efforts to sell larger quantities of
valves and expects that its success in doing :so- will lead to greater interest in financing the
Company. Kelso Management is also of the: opmlon that significant sales alone could finance its
modest needs until major funding is accomplished:

On October 4, 2005, Kelso announced that it had been granted a twenty year patent in Mexico for
its "Tank Transport Pressure Relief Valve”. The Mexican Patent expires in 2019.

On November 9, 2005, Kelso announced that it received an order for its 1575 pressure relief valves
from. Rescar Industries, Inc., the largest North American rail servicing and repair company with
facilities throughout the U.S. and Canada. This sale was the second that Kelso has made to a rail
industry customer and it placed Kelso squarely ahead of its 2005 sales objectives.

The sale was significant as it was rnade to a whole new class of customer, extending the
Company’s reach into all segme nts of the rail industry in North America: tank car owner, lessor and
repair and service facilities. With this sale, Kelso positioned itself to introduce and sell its
technology to the other 100+ service and repair facilities that make up Rescar's operations in the
US and Canada.
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- Related” Partx Transactions

* | - L. ) s

The followmg summanzes the company 's related party transactlons

< C - [P M Lol t 3 -

£
fron

L LR T 2006 " . ‘. 2005
. ] 3o P B S -
'Mahagement fees o e $.166,085 $ 183,855
. _Research and developrient costs e e $..100,000 $ 100,000 -
o Accountmg and legal ] - . - $. . 82,065 $ .65925

‘Consulting and investor relations Ao N 46,000 $ 50,000

Rent B $ 19,438 $ 9,342
Automoblle o R $ ‘12 190 s 7,150

- <

_ These transactlons are in the normal course of operat:ons and aré measured at the exchange
. amount which is. the amount of consideration establlshed and agreed to by the related partles

‘Included in accounts payable and accrued Habilities is $96 533 (2005 $17 838) due to related
partles .)"__ : . e

+

A ]

.- Included in prepald expenses is $Nil (2005 $10 000) advanced to related partaes '

T ] bl

Selected Quarterlg Information:. T e REEEE i
Aug 31, May 31,. ; Feb 28, - :Nov 30, Aug 31, "May 31, (| Feb 28, Nov 30
" 2006 2006 2006 . | 20065. - 2005-. 2005 2005 2004
Revenues 11,957 . 68,798 20,206 Nil Nil . . ‘ Nil Nil Nil
Ost Of L. ) r .. . R B " .|' ] FEE .
Salesand ' - ¢ o e ) oa el A . ) : _ -
' |Expenses - 321,498 237,950 118,765 105,572 256,961 270,730 104,955 120,67!
. Net.loss for | . PRETRL I P ‘ C . : 1w i
the period 309,541 | 169,152 98,559 105,572 | 256,961 | 270,730 104,955 120,671
Number of . : o -_ . ,
common o ‘ o ) ‘
shares 53,112, ?62 50,398,562 | 50,277,137 | 48,884,083 | 48,881,083 | 48,881,083 | 44,609,265 | 43,164,9

. outstandmg oo

5 . v

,-Netlossoer — - o ] — — - :
|common | 0.0058 .| 0.003¢ ] 0.0020 0.0022 © 0.0053. | 0.0055 0.0024 0.0028

|share . . ; 3 S A e ¢
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Kelso Technologies Inc.

CEO’S REPORT TO SHAH;EHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION-AND ANALYSIS

Twelve Months Ended August 31, 2006

W

Selected Annual Information:

T Alg 31, Aug 31, Aug 31,
2006 2005 - 2004
Revenues 100,961 Nil_ NI
Cost of Sales and Exp‘e.nses 783,785 _ 7.'53,32:4 ‘- 636;;86
Net loss for the period 682,824 75_3‘,324 636,_286
Number of common shares outstanding 53,112,762 48,881,083 41,597,932
Net loss pér common share '0.0129 . 00154 0.701h53 .

Subsequent Events

On September.11, 2006, Kelso announced the second and final closing of its Private Placement
{announced on May 31, 2006) for a total raised of $271,420 in two tranches, including $57,060
from two insiders of the Company

On September 13, the Company announced that its subsudlary had recently delivered a substantial
quantity of stainless steel 1575 pressure relief valves for installation on new tank cars being built
by one of the three largest tank car manufacturers in North America. This represented the balance
of the new. car build ordered that had been delayed by the tornado that hit the southern US during
the spring of 2006 thereby delaying manufacturmg of the tank cars.

on September 13, Ke|so announced that- |t was granted a twenty year patent in South Korea for its
: "Tank Transport Pressure Relief Valve” thereby opening a door of opportunity to another Asian
country. ’ )

- On October 11 & .12, Kelso held several high level meeting‘;s‘_ at the Association.of American
Railroads Tank Car Committea (AAR) Meeting held in.Kansas City, Missouri. . Several major
initiatives were discussed with existing and potential new accounts during these meetings. .

On October 31, 2006, the resignation of Stephen L. Grossman became effective. His resignation,
tendered for all positions of he held as a Director and Officer within Kelso Technologies Inc. and its
wholly owned subsidiary, Kelso Technologies (U.5.A.) Inc., resulted in subsequent changes to the
Company’s personnel. Mr. Grossman was instrumental in bringing the Company and that of its
revolutionary pressure relief valve for rallroad tank car applications, the 1575, to its current stage
of development and the Directors extended their sincere thanks to him for. his many years of
dedicated service.

On November 2, William (Bill) E. Troy, a member of Kelso’s Board of Directors, was appointed to
the position of President of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Kelso Technologies {U.S.A.)
Inc. at a compensation of $1.00 per year. Mr. Troy joined the Board of Directors in November of
2005, and has been instrumental in helping define the recent directicn of the Company as it moves
from a development stage company to a manufacturing and sales focused concern with a mandate
to increase shareholder value.

On November 6, Kelso appointed Andrew R. Male to the Board of Directors. Mr. Mate brings depth
in public market finance & corpcrate governance to Kelso, as a director of three publicly-traded
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Kelso Technoclogles Inc.
CEQ’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Twelve Months Ended August 31, 2006

m
companies in the natural resource sector. He also serves as an officer, director or advisor to
numerous private ventures in the structuring or start-up stage.

On November 6, 2006, Kelso announced the arrangement of a private placement in the amount of
$100,000. A portion of the proceeds were specifically allocated to pursue and secure long term
additional and substantial, growth capital that would restrict dilution and would be in shareholders’
best interests. ;

On November 14, the Company appointed former Kelso Director, Steven Cozine, to the newly-
created position of Vice President, Corporate Development & Shareholder Relations. Mr. Cozine

served as an officer and then as a director of Kelso from June of 1993 to August of 1999, In 1996,

. he started his own consulting firm to provide financing, investor relations and corporate

communications services to the technology and mining sectors.

On January 3, 2007, Kelso obtained, at its request, a management cease trade order to allow
additional time for preparing its audited financial statements. The statements normally due
December 29, 2006 could not be preduced due to delays caused by a change in financial
regulations affecting all companies. These changes required Kelso to separate its accounting from
its auditing functions and locate and appoint new auditors who had insufficient time to produce the
financials as a result of their office Christmas closure.

On January 11 & 12, 2007, Kelso’s VP of Engineering, attended a specialized high flow testing
facility in Colorado where tests were conducted on.two new models of valves, a low flow design
based on the existing 1575 and a low flow 15165 pressure relief valve. The results were successful
and Kelso is currently In the process of preparing applications to-the AAR for approval and

certification for testing, respectively. Kelso is also testing a third new design in January - a high
flow version of its 1575 for future applicaticn to ethanol transport tank cars.

Subsequent to November 30, 2006, a private placement was announced, which consists of
4,500,000 units at a price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit will consist of one commaon share and one
share purchase warrant. Each warrant will entitle the holder to acquire an additional common
share in the capital of the Company at a price of $0.10 per share for a penod of two years from
closing. The anticipated closing date is February 23, 2007.

If you have any questions, please call Kelso at 604,878.7600 ext. 4 or toll free at 866.535.7685
ext. 4,

Kelso thanks you .

John L. Carswell
President & CEQ

Kelso Technologies Inc.
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:‘;_ﬁ_ﬁz’@,r. (I ‘ ST Smythe Ratcliffe LLP
, S Ly \ 7t Floor, Marine Building

355 Burrard Street

| _;‘: . A C Vancouver, BC V6C 2G8
. _' -

S | SmytheRatcliffe

) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

fax: 604.688.4675

telephone: 604.687.1231

AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE DIRECTORS OF KEL.SO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
{A Development Stage Company)

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Kelso Technologies Inc. {A Development Stage
Company) as at August 31, 2006 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to cbtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial
position of the Company as at August 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The consolidated financial statements as at August 31, 2005 and for the year then ended were audited by

another firm of auditors who expressed an opinion without reservation in their report dated November 30,
2005,

“Smythe Ratcliffe LLP” (signed)

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
January 17, 2007

Smythe Ratcliffe LLP, a British Columbia limited liability partnership, is 2 member of PKF North Amarican Network A Member of PKF International
and PKF intemational, associations of legally independent firms,




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
(A Development Stage Company) .
Consolidated Balance Sheets

August 31 .
2006 2005
" Assets _
Current . - -. -
Cash 3 30,484 86,205
Accounts receivable | 9,884 0
Goods and Services Tax recelvable 2,689 5,350
Prepaid expenses (note 5) 4385 18,675
' _ | 43,542 110,230
" _Equipment (note 3) 2,585 3,641
- $ 46,127 113,871
Liabilites . -
Current _ _
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 5) ' $ 201,479 - 30,031
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)

" Capital Stock el
Common shares (note 4{a)) 7,962 649 7,527,034
Preference shares (note 4(b}) .0 - 25,000
Share subscriptions (note 4(f)) 13,208 ' 0

Contributed Surplus (no’ge 4(g)) 138,909 119,100
Deficit (8,270,118) (7,587 294)
(155,352) 83,840

$ 46,127 113,871

Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation (note 1)

" Contractual Obligations (note 7)
Approved on behaif of the Board:
“William E. Troy” .
chlamETroy
“John L. Carswell”

...................................................................

John L. Carswell

See notes to consolidat_ed financial statements.

. Director:

Director



* ' KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit
Years Ended August 31

2008 2005
Revenues 3 100,961 0
Cost of Sales 63,317 0
Gross Profit 37,644 0
Expenses A L .

" Management fees {note 5) ° . 166,085 183,855
Accounting and legal (note 5) 149,022 113,942
Research and development costs (note 5) 119,214 141,359

- Management salaries 82,832 0
Consulting and investor relations (note 5) 70,310 151,803

_ Travel ' 35,859 18,063
Stock-based compensation 19,884 52,268
Rent (note 5) 19,438 9,774
Office and general 18,555 30,542
Automobite {note 5; 12,189 7,938
License and fees 10,742 31,987
Telephone 8,445 6,745
Advertising 6,186 1,177

. Bank charges 1,606 1,153
Loss on disposal of equipment S ¥ 5,657
interest income (1,055) (5,226)
Amortization 1,056 2,287

720,468 753,324

Net Loss for Year (682,824) {753,324)

Deficit, Beginning of Year (7,587,294) '(6,833,970)

Deficit, End of Year $ (8,270,1 18) (7,58?.294)

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 3 (0.01) $(0.02)

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding 50,286,235 45,379;492

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 3




KELSO TECHNOLOQGIES INC,

(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended August 31

2006 2005
F 1
Operating Activities e o :
Net toss $ (682,824) 3 (753,324)
ltems not mvolvmg cash ‘ ‘
"Amortization o ) 1,056 2,287
Stock-based compensation 19,884 52,268
Loss on disposal of equipment 0 5,657
Operating‘ Cash Flow - (661,884) (693,112)
Changes in Non-Cash Workmg Capltﬂl .
Accounts recelvable CoLl X (5,884) 0
Goods and Services Tax recewable 2,661 (5,350)
Prepaid expenses 18,190 - (18,675)
Ac;counts payable and accrued liabilities 171,448 (10,477)
182,415 (34,502)
Cash Used in Operating Activitiés . (479,469) . (727.614)
Financing Activities T
Issuance of common shares net 410,540, . 737,474
~ Share subscnptlons ' 13,208 0
Cash Provided by Financing Acti_vities 423,748 737,474
Inflow (Outflow) of Cash (55,721) 9,860
Cash, Beginning of Year 86,205 76,345
Cash, End of Year $ 30,484 3 86,205
S.uppleAmentary Cash Flow Information
Non-cash financing activity o
Conversion of preference shares to common shares $ © 25000 $ 37,650
Income taxes paid 3 0 & 0

{o

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 4



"KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC

(A Development Stage Company)

..Notes to Consclidated Financial'Statements
5 Years Ended August 31, 2006 and 2005

.o

e

1. __NATU'RE OF dPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

" The Company |s m the business of researching and developing various types of pressure relief

valves.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going-concérn basis,.which
presumes the realization of assets and the discharge of liabilities in the normal course of
business for the foreseeable future.

The Company has experienced significant operating losses and as at August 31, 2006 have an

accumulated deficit of $8,270,118 (2005 - $7,587,294) and a working capital deficiency of

$157,937 (2005 - $80,199 working capital). The Company’s ability to continue operations is

uncertain and is dependent upon its ability to achieve profitability and obtain new sources of

financing. The outcome of these matters cannot be predicted at this time: These financial

statements do not include any adjustments to the amounts and classifications of assets and
.~ liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue operations.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

(€)

Principles of consolidation

The consofidated financial statements include the accounts of Kelso Technologies Inc.
and its integrated wholly-owned subsidiaries, 432583 B.C. Ltd., aBC corporatlon and
Kelso Technologies (USA) Inc., a Nevada, USA corporatlon

Amortization

Equnpment is recorded at cost and amortized on a decllnlng -balance bas:s as follows:

Office eqmpment - 20%
Computer equipment . _ - 45%

Research and development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of valves upon conﬁrmmg receipt of the
shipment by the customer.

Income taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Future
income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of “temporary differences” by
applying enacted or substantively enacted statutory tax rates to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. The

- effect on future taxes for a change in tax rates is recognized as income in the period that

includes the date of enactment or substantive enactment. Future tax benefits are
recognized to the extent that realization of such benefits is more likely than not.




KELSQO TECHNOLOGIES INC.

{A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended August 31, 2006 and 2005

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

@

(h)

Financial instruments

i - Faar value _
' The canymg values of cash accounts receivable, and accounts payable and
- accrued liabilities approximate their fair values because of the short-term maturity
of these financial instruments.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk due to the short—term
- matunty of its monetary current assets and current liabilities.

(i Credit rlsk '

The Company is exposed to credit risk with respect to its cash; however, this is
minimized as cash is placed with major financial institutions.

(iv) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to cumrency risk to the extent expenditures incurred or
funds received by the Company’s US operations are denominated in US dollars.
The Company does not manage currency risks through hedging or other
currency management tools.

Foreign currency translation
The accounts of foreign operations are translated into Canadian dotlars as follows:

n - Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at
the balance sheet date;

{in) Non-monetary items, are translated at historical exchange rates; and

(i) . Revenue and expen'se iterns are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at
the time they occur, .

Gains and losses arising on foreign currency translation are included in operations in the
year recognized.

Use of estimates

Financial statement presentation in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions, which
can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring the use
of estimates include the rate for amortization of equipment, the estimate of accrued
liabilities and the calculation of stock-based compensation expense. Actual results may
vary from the current estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and as
adjustments become necessary, they are reported in eamings in the period that they
actualiy become known.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNﬂNG POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Basic and diluted loss per share

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted loss per share is calculated using the treasury stock
‘method. Under this method, stock options and share purchase warrants and equivalents
outstanding are not included in the computation of diluted Ioss per share as their
inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

) Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense using the fair value
based method using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with respect to all stock- -
based payments to directors, employees and consultants. Under this standard, stock-
based payments are recorded as an expense over the vesting period or when vested,
with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus under shareholders’ equity. When
stock options are exercised, the correspondmg fair. value is transferred from contributed
surplus 1o capital stock.

3. EQUIPMENT

2006 . 2005
‘ . Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net Net
Office equipment $ 10956 $ 0,094 .$ 1,862 § 2,328
Computer equipment 1,365 642 723 1,313
' ' S 12321 $§ 973 § 2585 3641

4. CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized :
100,000,000 Class A non-cumulative, preference shares without par value, of which
5,000,000 are designated Class A; convemble voting, preference shares,
Series |
100,000,000 Common shares without par value




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended August 31, 2006 and 2005

4. CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

issued

@

Common shares”

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Private placements

)

Number of
Common
Shares Amount
Balance, August 31, 2004 415979832 $% 6,662600
1ssued during the year S

" Private placements, for cash (net of issue costs) 5,020,818 563,228
Exercise of warrants, for cash 1,118,030 129,278
Exercise of options, for cash 1,032,572 103,257
Reallocated from contributed surplus 0 31,020
Conversion of preferred shares 111,731 37,8650

» 7,283,151 864,434
Ballance',ﬂgust 31, 2005 48,881,083 7,527,034
issued during the year - -

" Private placements, for cash. (net of issue costs) - 4,107,254 403,240
Exercise of warrants, for ‘cash , 50,000 7,000
Exercise of optlons for cash 3,000 300
Reallocated from contributed surplus : 0 75
Conversion of preferred shares 71,425 25,000

Lo 4,231,679 435615

- Balance, August 31, 2006 53,112,762 $ 7,962,649

On September 13, 2004, the Company completed a-pn'vate- placement and

issued 649,000 common shares for gross proceeds of $94,105. The investors

, were also granted non-transferable warrants 10 purchase up to an additional
649,000 shares for a period of two years at a price of $0.17 per share. On
October 8, 2004, an additional 100,000 shares were issued with the same terms.

On April 22, 2005, the Company completed a private placement and issued
4,271,818 comnton shares for gross proceeds of $469,900. The investors were

also granted non-transferable warrants to purchase up to an additional 4,271,818
shares for a period of two years at a price of $0.14 per share.

On January 17, 2008, the Company completed a private placement and issued

1,374,380 common shares for gross proceeds of $137,438. The investors were
also granted non-transferable warrants to purchase up to an additional 1,374,380
shares for a period of two years at a price of $0.15 per share.

On August 18, 2006, the Company completed a private placement in two

tranches and issued 2,714,200 common shares for gross proceeds of $271,420.
The investors were also granted non-transferable warrants to purchase up to an
additional 2,714,200 shares for a period ofone year at a price of $0.15 per share.

Total finder's fees were $5,618.
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CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

(0)

(©

(d)

Class A convertible, voting, preference shares, Series |

2006 T 2005
Number C ' Number '
of Shares Amount of Shares Amount
Balance, beginning of year 25,000 s 25000 | 862650 § 62,850
Converted into '
common shares . [(25,000) T (25,000) {37 650) {37.650)
Balance, end of year 0. s 0. 25000 § 25000

Of the preference shares, 25,000 were initially convertible into units consisting of one
commen share and one share purchase warrant at the rate of one unit for every $0.15 of
paid-up capital until March 12, 2002. The rate then increased by $0.05 on each annual
anniversary date until March 12, 2006. Each share purchase warrant had a term that
expired on the earlier of March 12, 2006 or the date that was two years from the date of
conversion and entitied the holder thereof to purchase one additional common share.
The share purchase warrants were exercisabie in the first year at a price equal to the
conversion price and at a 15% premium to the conversion price in the second year.

Escrowed shares

Held in escrow are 450,000 (2005 - 562 500) common shares |ssued at $0.01 per share,
which are being released from escrow at the rate of 7.5% (56,250) every six months
(note 8(a)). The shares (originally 750,000) were put into escrow during fiscal 2003 as a
result of a transfer of shares between officers of the Company.

Stock options”

Options to purchase common shares have been g'ranted_ to directors, employees and
consultants at exercise prices determined by reference to the market value on the date of
the grant. All stock options vested immediately. As at August 31, 2006, the Company
had stock options outstanding to directors and employees for the purchase of up to
4,436,000 c_;ommon’shares exercisable as follows: ,

e _ Exercise 7
Number Price Expiry Date
98,257 $0.10 November 22, 2006 *
410,875 5010 September 4, 2007
206,071 $0.10 November 4, 2007
238,500 $0.10 March 25, 2008
1,268,422 501 December 29, 2008
1,835,775 $0.11 February 24, 2010
278,100 $0.10 September 26, 2010
4,436,000

* Expired unexerciséd
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4,

()

CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

Stock options (Continued)

A summary of the Company’s stock optlons as at August 31 2006 and 2005 and

changes for the years then ended are ‘as follows

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Number Price

" Outstanding, August 31, 2004 3,735,797 $0.10
Granted . 1,935,775 $0.11
Exercised (1,032,572) $0.10
Cancelled / expired (200,000) $0.10
Outstanding, August 31, 2005 4,439,000 $0.10
Granted ' 278,100 $0.10
Exercised (3,000) $0.10
Cancelled (278,100) $0.10
Outstanding, August 31, 2006 4,436,000 $0.10

Stock-based compensation

During 2006, the Company granted stock options to acquire 278,100 shares (2005 -
1,935,775) to directors, officers and consultants resufting in a stock-based compensation

expense of $19,884 (2005 - $52 ,268).

with assumptions as follows:

" The fair value of stock_ optlons is determined by the Black-Scholes option pricing model

2005

- 2006
Risk-free interest rate 4.50% 3.51%
Estimated volatility 73% 30%
Expected life - 5 years 2-5 years
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%

Option pricing models require the use of hnghly subjective estimates and assumptions
including the expected stock price volatility. Changes in the underlying assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimates.
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4, CAPITAL STOCK {Continued)
- e} Share purchase warranis

As at August 31, 2006, the Company has share purchase warrants outstanding entitling
the holders to acqmre common shares as follows: . .

Outstanding o R Outstanding
Exercise ) August 31, August 31,
Price Expiry Date 2005 Issued Exercised Expired 2008
$0.11  September 4, 2005 1,283,301 0 0 1,283,301 0
$0.11  September 28, 2005 75,000 0 0 75,000 0
$014  December 23, 2005 797,728 0 0 . 797,728 0
$0.20  June 4, 2006 402,968 0 0 402968 0
$030  June 5, 2006 20,166 0 0 29,166 ‘ i}
$017  September 9, 2006 748,000 0 0 0 * 749,000
'$0.14  April 20, 2007 4,271,818 0 50,000 0 4,221 818
'$015  June 26, 2007 0 2,472,400 0 0 2,472 400
§0.45  July 12,2007 0 100,000 0 0 100,000
$0.15  August 18, 2007 0 141,800 0 0 141,800
$0.15  January 10, 2008 0 1374380 -0 0 1374380
7,608,981 4088550 50,000 2,588,163 9,050,398
* Expired unexercised
n Funds advanced for share subscriptions

During 2006 the Company received $13, 208 for future share subscnptlons At year-end,
the shares had not been issued. The subscriber agreed to leave the funds with the
Company until the next availabie private placement was scheduled. A private placement
was announced subsequent to the year-end and the subscriber is expected to participate
at a rate of $0.10 per share. The subscriber is also expected to receive one share
purchase warrant for each common share purchased that will entitle the holder to acquire
an additional common share at a pnce of $0.10 per share for a period of two years from
closing (note 8(b)).

(@ Contributed surplus

2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year ' $ 119100 $ 97,852
Stock-based compensation 19,884 52,268
Reallocated to capital stock {75) (31,020}
Balance, end of year $ 138909 $ 119,100

11




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended August 31, 2006 and 2005

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are directors and officers, companies controlled by the directors and officers, a
company controlled by a former officer, and a company whose pnnmpal is an officer of the

. Company. oo . _ ..
2006 2005

Management fees $ 166,085 $ 183,855
Research and development costs $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Accounting and legal 8 82,0685 $. 65625
-, Consulting and investor relations $ - 46,000 % 50,000
*.. Rent $ 19,438 $ 9,342
Automobile $ 12,180 § 7,150

These transactions are in thé normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
~ amount, which is,the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Included in accounts payable and accrued lsabulmes s $96,533 (2005 $17, 838) due to related
parties. :

Included in prepaid expenses is $Nil (2005 - $10,000) advanced. to related parties.

6.  INCOME TAXES :

‘The Company has non-capital loss carry- forwards of $3.471,213 to reduce future income tax as
follows: .

2007 - $ 245376

2008 i $ 249,725

2009 $ 397,372

2010 . % 616,077

2011 $ 612,886

2015 $ 688,201

2026 $ 661,576

The Company has capital losses of $138,019 to be applied against future net caprlal gains.
These: Iosses can be carried forward indefinitely. T

The Company has Canadian exploration expendrtures totaling $92,424 and Canadian

development expenditures totaling $50,500 that may be available to reduce future taxable
income. :

Future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of the balance sheet items and their corresponding tax values as welt as for the
benefit of losses available to be carried forward to future years for tax purposes that are more
likely than not to be reallzed

12
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6. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The reconciliation of income tax benefit computed at statutory rates to the reponed income tax
benefit is as follows: :

2006 2005

Income tax rate '  34.12% 35.62%
Income tax benefit computed at Canadian statutory rates $ 225730 $ 263474
Temporary differences not recognized in year .23 2,496
Permanent differences ‘ (7,.273). {20,843)
Unrecognized losses (218,480) (245,127)
Fulure income tax recovery e - '$ ' 0 B $ - 0

Significant components of the Company’s future tax assets and liabilities, after applying enacted
corporate income tax rates, are as follows:

2006 2005
Future income tax assets

Non-capital loss carry-forwards $ 1,184,378 $ 1,167,985
Tax value in excess of book value of gssets 10,155 10,225
Unused cumulative Canadian exploration expenses - 92,424 02,424
Unused cumulative Canadian development expenses 50,500 50,500
1,337,457 - 1,321,134
Valuation allowance for future income tax assets (1,337,457) (1,321,134)
$ 0 § 0

7. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Management agreement

By agreement dated February 1, 1996 and subsequently amended, the Company entered into an
agreement with a director to serve the Company and its subsidiary as an executive officer. In
consideration, the Company agreed to pay US $11,000 per month. The agreement may be
terminated by the director by giving two months' written notice or by the Company at any time
without notice. Termination of the agreement by the Company would require the Company to
make a severance payment egual to twelve months of management fees.

13
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@)

®)

- Subsequent to August 31, 2006, the following occurred:

56,250 common shares held in escrow were released effective September 11, 2006; and

A private placement was announced, which consists of 4,500,000 units at a price of
$0.10 per unit, Each unit will consist of one common share and one share purchase
warrant. Each warrant will entitle the holder to acquire an additional comman share in the
capital of the Company at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of two years from

- closing.  The anticipated closing date is February 23, 2007.
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Three Months Ended Novembe_r_BQ, 2006

Kelso Technologies Inc.
CEO’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Description of Business

The Company is engaged in the development, marketing, selling, and licensing to manufacture
various types of pressure relief vaives that are initially designed to be installed on raiiroad tank
cars which carry hazardous and non-hazardous commodities. The first of a series of valves, Kelso's
JS75 is a patented pressure relief valve that is an external valve, which has specific advantages
over the current class of internal pressure relief valves,

The JS75 falls under the regulations of the Association of American Railroads ("AAR”). The AAR is
the self-governing body for the railroad industry in North America, which requires certain products,
including the 1575, to be installed on railroad tank cars and satisfactorily complete a two year
service trial prior to commercialization.

In order to enter the service trial, the Company had to install J$75 pressure relief valves on thirty
tank cars. Under a signed Agreement with Terra International, Inc. {dated September 5, 2001),
Kelso, on March 15, 2002, concluded installation of all thirty of its 3575 valves on Terra’s tank cars
which it leased from Union Tank Car Company. Those cars traveled extensively throughout all of
North America,

On November 14, 2003, Kelso completed the final year of the two years required for the AAR
Service Trial. The Company is pleased to report that over the two years, the service trial cars
traveled approximately 4 million miles, well in excess of the 275,000 miles required by the AAR
regulations for service trials. Kelso therefore substantialiy exceeded AAR requirements. In
January of 2004, Kelso met with an AAR Observer at an independent AAR-certified, railroad repair
facility and conducted the required AAR teardown of five Kelso JS75 valves that were in the service
trial.  Once the successful teardown was completed, Kelso submitted a complete dossier to the
Cirector of the AAR Tank Car Committee for the Committee’s subsequent review and approval. On
February 23, 2004, Kelso announced that the AAR had certified Kelso's 1575 Pressure Relief Valve
for use on 75 pound general purpose tank cars carrying hazardous commodities. As a result, Kelso
had the ability from that point forward to sell its valves for use on all 75 pound general purpose
tank cars traveling throughout North America and carrying both hazardous and non-hazardous
commodities. The certification also ended the two years AAR Service Trial.

On May 27, 2004, Kelso announced that it was engaged in significant, in-depth discussions with
major companies that would assist Kelso in entering the commercial phase with its JS75 Pressure
Relief Valve with regard to the rail industry.

On lJanuary 10, 2005, Kelso announced it had signed a Joint Marketing and Development
Agreement with North America’s largest tank car lessor, Union Tank Car Company (Chicago) and
its affiliate, McKenzie Valve and Machining Company (Tennessee). Union Tank Car Company, along
with its wholly-owned Canadian affiliate, Procor Limited, leases approximately 85,000 rail tank cars
around North America. Union also manufacturers tank cars for the rail industry. Both Union and
Procor own several railroad repair and maintenance facilities in North America. All of Union’s and
Procor's clients are potential customers for sales of Kelso’s ]S line of pressure relief valves
beginning with the JS75.

With the signing of the Agreement, McKenzie became Kelso's North American manufacturer of the
Kelso JS line of pressure relief valves.
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The Agreement was-the second, most significant event: at that time, next to the invention of the
JS75 valve. With Union’s 114 plus-years in the rail industry, its marketing expertise was deemed
to be a major asset in assisting Kelso as it entered sales. In early January 2005, Kelso anticipated
that sales and delivery of small quantutles of its JS7S pressure reluef valves would begm durmg the
fall of 2005 which they.did. : : :

On February 14, 2005, Kelso announced that it was working on its Business Plan that was designed

. to lay the foundation for raising thé necessary funds to finance Kelso so it could properly begin
commercialization. The news release went on to-mention that Kelso's manufacturer, McKen21e
Valve and Machining Company was in the process of costmg the components to manufacture the
Kelso 1575. - .

Kelso worked with McKenzie on the development of the low flow ]JS75 and undertook two flow tests
at a specialized laboratory in Ohio and final flow testing- of three of its production valves in the fall
of 2006 at an independent, high-pressure. testing-laboratory in Colorado. Following the testing,
Kelso submitted a dossier to the AAR to obtain AAR certification so that it could begin sales as
quickly as possible. That process'is underway CUrrently

On February 28, 2005 Kelso announced that |ts shareholders had adopted the 2005 Stock' Option
Plan for Kelso’s employees, officers and directors. The plan was no different than previous Option
Plans.annually approved by shareholders prior to the 2005 Plan. It is a securities requirement
that, each year; the:shareholders:of.a public company have the right, to vote 'on whether their
Company can .offer a Stock Option Plan for those working for the Company. The importance of
having a, Stock Option .Plan approved by.shareholders each year, as required by the TSX Venture
Exchange, cannot be .underestimated. ion Plan is criti ractin

well as R&D of its prototypes for the rail and eventually for other industries, As is
required annually, shareholders wrll be asked to vote to approve the 2006 Stock Optlon Pian at the
2006 AGM. : .

on March 2,- 2005, Kelso announced that it.planned to arrange a private placement in_hopes of
securing up to $500,000. On April 21, 2005, Kelso announced the closing of the private placement
for a total of $469,900. The funds have been used for general working capital as well as for special
projects including attending the AAR Bureau of Explosives Seminar (BOE), the filming and final
production of both a sales and marketing video, as well as a-maintenance video for repair facilities
around North America, for advertising in Progressive Railroading magazine (circulation 25,000) and
other projects related to the marketing and sales as well as R&D of Kelso’s products.

On May 24 & 25, 2005, Kelso debuted its 1575 Stainless Steel Pressure ‘Relief Valve at the Bureau
of Explosives Seminar (BOE) in Kansas City, Missouri. It was its first presence at a trade show
since its stainless steel version of its 1575 was certified by the AAR. Kelso was extremely pleased
with the reception it received during the intensive two-day trade show and seminar where Kelso's
valve stood out at the exh|b|t as “the highlight of the show” according to many who visited Kelso’s
exhibit.

The rail industry rarely sees innovation but clearly witnessed an exciting innovation in the form of
Kelso's JS75 valve technology during the two days. Kelso's marketing and sales video CD was
continuously played to an interested audience of observers, copies of the CD and other product
literature was handed out and numerous questions answered.
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The BOE presence culminated in subsequent sales to large corporate customers as well as in the
creation of awareness within the rail industry that Kelso- had product for sale.

As of July 31, 2005, Stephen L. Grossman vacated the posmon of Presudent & CEQ of Kelso

Technologies Inc. but continued as a Dlrector_of Kelso Technologies Inc. and as Chairman of Kelsg’'s
Board.

As of August 1, 2005, Kelso announced the appointment of John L. Carswell to the position of
President & CEQ of Kelso Technologies.Inc. effective August 1, 2005. Mr. Carswell served as a
senior officer of Kelso Technologies Inc. for the over nine years and as a Director for over ten
years. Mr. Carswell continued to work on all aspects of sales and marketing, R&D and company
administration as part of the small Kelso Team.

Mr. Grossman, an American citizen, worked for Kelso in Canada for eleven years under Canadian
Worker Permits. Due to the Worker Permit's expiry on July 31, 2005 and the need o commercialize
Kelso’s technology in the United States, Mr. Grossman relocated his residence to the United States
and began setting up Kelso's wholly-owned. subsidiary to serve the North American rail markets -
Kelso Technologies (U.S.A.) Inc. is a Nevada incorporated company. On August 23, 2005, it was
announced that Mr. Grossman was appointed President & CEO and Director of the US subsidiary.

On August 30, 2005, following extensive efforts that continued after the May 2005 Bureau Of
Explosives Seminar, Kelso successfully announced its first ever sale of.its 1575 pressure reltef valve
to a worldwide, US-based Chemical Manufacturer and Fleet Operator with their headquarters in
Germany. The landmark sale is further confirmation of the industry’s endorsement -of Kelso's
innovative technology for use in the transport of various commodities. The buyer has a diverse

product mix ranging from chemicals to polymers to industrial coatings with annual sales in the
billions. S

On September 12, 2005, Kelso announced that it had entered into a new investment banking
advisory agreement with a Toronto-based securities company to provide ongoing financial advisory
and related services including arranging financing on a best efforts basis. Efforts continued
through the fall without success. Kelso, however, is still in discussions with numerous other
individuals and/or groups in Canada, the US, the UK and India regarding funding. It became
apparent to Kelso management that until the Company successfully sold a number of its valves into
the rail industry, it would not have demonstrated the acceptance within the industry that would
make it an attractive venture to fund. Kelso continues with its efforts to sell larger quantities of
valves and expects that its success in doing so will lead to greater interest in financing the
Company. Kelso Management is also of the opinion that significant sales alone could finance its
modest needs until major funding is accomplished.

on October.4, 2005, Kelso announced that it had been granted a twenty year patent in Mexico for
its "Tank Transport Pressure Relief Valve”. The Mexican Patent expires in 2019.

On November 9, 2005, Kelso announced that it received an order for its JS75 pressure relief valves
from Rescar Industries, Inc., the largest North American rail servicing and repair company with
facilities throughout the U.S. and Canada. This sale was the second that Kelso has made to a rail
industry customer and it placed Kelso squarely ahead of its 2005 sales objectives.
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The sale was sugnn-“cant as it was made . to @ whole new class of customer, extending the
Company’s reach into all segments of the rail industry in North America: tank car owner, lessor and
repair and service facilities. With this sale, Kelso positioned itself to introduce and sell its
technology to the other 100+ service: and repalr faCIIItIES that make up Rescars operatlons in the
US and Canada.. .o .

Kelso continued its aggresswe marketmg -and sales ef'forts in early 2006. Company Management
demonstrated its valve technology to a number of chemical and oil and gas companies in mid-
December 2005 and undertook strategic follow-up in early 2006 with potential customers.

On February 1, 2006, Kelso reported-that Rescar Industries Inc. placed its second order for Kelso's
JS75 pressure relief valves. -On February 13, 2006, Kelso reported that it had' made its biggest-sale
ever, more than- 100 of its-stainless steel JS75 pressure relief valves to one of the three largest
railcar manufacturers in the US, for installation on new tank cars being built for Eastman Chemical

‘Company, one of Kelso's existing customers. This sale demonstrated that Kelso can sell its valves

to replace competitors’ valves -due to the superlorlty of Kelso S- technology design.

On March 20, 2006 Kelso announced that Jt had been invited to make a number of technical
presentations of its 1575 pressure relief valve at the headquarters of various large rail tank car
owners/operators in the United States. Through March and April, Kelso made presentations to a
number of large il & gas and chemical companies that use rail shipping extensively. In addition,
the Company prowded addmonal detalled mformatlon requested by a rail car management
company. : : : 3 .

On March_ 27, 2006 Kelso delivered -half of the ]JS75 stainless steel pressure relief valves ordered
for Eastman Chemical’s new.car, build. to the manufacturing plant based in the U.S. The tank car
build, originally scheduled for completion by the end of May .2006, has been delayed due to a
tornado that damaged the manufacturing plant. It is estimated that production will resume by
September 2006. and.the remaining order of the Kelso valves will be shipped at that time. Kelso
was paid for the valves it had already shlpped : ‘

In early April, John L. Carswell attended a meeting held in Tennessee at the offices of one of its
customers, Eastman Chemical-Company. Discussions with personnel centered on manufacturing,
customers needs for pressure relief valves, and Kelso’s plans for development of other pressure
relief valves for different types of rail cars. Eastman Chemical has several thousand tank cars and
has been a major customer of Kelso in Kelso’s beginning stages of sales. Kels¢ is very grateful to
Eastman for their confidence both in our product and.our management team.

On April 19, 2006, Barry LaCroix, Kelso's Vice President of Engineering and R&D attended the
Association of American Railroads (AAR) Tank Car Committee bi-annual meeting held in Galveston,
Texas. ODuring his trip to the meeting, he also made presentations in the Houston area to two
potentiat customers for Kelso’s 1S75 pressure relief valve, Barry advised Kelso Vancouver to set up
additional meetings with some of the new contacts he made at the AAR Meeting who showed major
interest in the 1575.

In April 2006, Kelso announced a Private Placement for total proceeds of up to $250,000.

In May 2006, the Company launched a completely new website to coincide with its participation at

. the Bureau of Explosives (BOE) Seminar & Trade Show held May 23 and 24, 2006 in Kansas City,

Missouri. Kelso demonstrated its 1575 Pressure Relief Valve and debuted its new 1S75L low flow
prototype valve to BOE attendees. The Company has had numerous inquiries from existing and
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potentlal customers who have expressed much :nterest in the JS75L Low Flow valve since |t was
first conceived by Kelso. D

On May 31, 2006, Kelso re-announced its Private Placement increasing the amount from $250,000
to $375,000. On June 26, 2006 Kelso closed the first tranche of its Private Placement having
deposited subscription funds totaling $257,240. This included $57,060 from two insiders of the
Company. -

The Private Placement enabled the Company to pay several existing bills and has provided the
Company with the necessary working capital to continue its marketing, sales and R&D work. The
Company continues discussions with various parties in Canada and the US to raise the bridge
funding it needs to fully -develop the Companys products and epr0|t its North Amencan rail
industry markets.

During the months of June and July, the Company continued R&D and testing of its JS75 Low Flow
Valve and began development on its JS165 Prototype. Development of these valves proceeded
well and revised prototypes were flow tested in August 2006 at a specialized flow testing facility in
Ohio. .

In mid-July, Kelso Management attended several meetings in and around the Chicago area with a
variety of -rail-related companies. The purpose of the meetings was to further advance the
Company’s market for its valves and to discuss sales with potential customers. The Company aiso
continued discussions to add its technology to the purchasing system of a large tank car lessor so
that Kelso's valves would be available for purchase for its customers. The Company owns and
leases approximately 30,000 tank cars. Kelso also agreed to make technical presentations at this
Company's twe, owned.: service facilities, one based in Canada and the other in the US.

Kelso sold additional smali quantities of valves (in particular, valves to replace internal valves that
would have required servicing) and was asked to and-bid on future new build contracts and is
following up on potential sales opportunities.

On September 11, 2006, Kelso ahnounced the second and final closing of its Private Placement
(announced on May 31, 2006) for a total raised of $271,420 in two tranches, including $57,060
from two insiders of the Company.

On September 13, the Company announced that its subsidiary had recently dehvered a substantial
quantity of stainless steel JS75 pressure relief valves for installation on new tank cars being built
by one of the three largest tank car manufacturers in North America. This represented the balance
of the new car build ordered that had been delayed by the tornado that hit the southern US during
the spring of 2006 thereby delaying manufacturing of the tank cars.

On September 13, Kelso announced that it was granted a twenty year patent in South Korea for its
"Tank Transport Pressure Relief Valve” thereby opening a door of opportunity to another Asian
country.

On October 11 & 12, Kelso held several high level meetings at the Association of American

Railroads Tank Car Committee (AAR) Meeting held in Kansas City, Missouri. Several major
initiatives were discussed with existing and potential new accounts during these meetings.
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Kelso Technoiogies Inc.
CEQ’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEM ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Three Months Ended November 30, 2006 R _

On October 31, 2006, the resignation of Stephen L. Grossman became effective. His resignation,
tendered for all positions of he held as a Director and Officer within Kelso Technologies Inc. and its
wholly owned subsidiary, Kelso Technologies (U.S.A.) Inc., resulted in subsequent changes to the
Company’s personnel. . Mr. Grossman. was instrumental in bringing the Company and that of its
revolutionary pressure relief valve for railroad tank car applications, the 1575, to its current stage
of development and the Directors extended their. sincere thanks to him for h|s many years of
dedicated service. .

On November 2, William (Bill) E. Troy, a member of Kelso’s Board of Directors, was appointed to
the position of President of the Company’s wholly -owned subsidiary, Kelso Technologies (U.5.A.)
Inc. at a compensation of $1.00 per year. Mr. Troy joined the Board of Directors in November of
2005, -and has been instrumental in helping define the recent direction of the Company as it moves
from a development stage company to a manufacturing and sales focused concern with a mandate
to increase shareholder value. . )

On November 6, Kelso appointed Andrew R. Male to the Board of Directors. Mr. Male brings depth
in public market finance & corporate, governance to.Kelso, as a director of three publicly-traded
companies in the natural resource sector. He also serves as an officer, director or advisor to
numerous private ventures in the structuring or start-up stage.

On November 6, 2006, Kelso announced the arrangement of a private placement in the amount of
$100,000. A portion of the proceeds were specifically aliocated to pursue and secure long term
additional and substantial, growth cap:tal that would restrict dilution and would be in shareholders’
best interests,

On November 14, the Company appointed former Kelso Director, Steven Cozine, to the newly-
created position of Vice President, Corporate Development & Shareholder Relations. Mr. Cozine
served as an officer and then as a director of Kelso from June of 1993 to August.of 1999. In 1996,
he started his own consulting firm to providé financing, - investor relations and corporate
communications services to the technology and mining sectors. .

Discussion of Operations, Financial Conditions and Milestones

Liguidity and Solvency

Kelso continues to seek operational capital through private placements and sales of its products.
At this early stage, the.Company continues to operate in @ working capital deficiency format. The
Company expects that through sales and financings, the working capital deficiency will be
successfully managed on an ongoing basis. Kelso enjoys a large base of dedicated shareholders,
approxnmately 1900, mostly in North America and some overseas.
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Kelso Technologies Inc.
CEO’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Three Months Ended November 30, 2006

iy —

Related 'Party Transactions

The following summarizes the Company’s related party transactio_rj‘é for the period:

Automobile $1,465
Censulting and investor relatlons % -
Legal $2,977
Management fees $36,719
Management salaries $30,000
Rent - $3,839
Research and development costs - $20,328

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $190,597 owing to related parties.
transactions are in the normal course of operations

Included in prepaid expenses are $518 expended to related parties.
normal course of operations.

Selected Quarterly Information:

These

These transactions are in the

Nov 30, Aug 31, [ May 31, ~Feb 28, |* Nov 30, "Aug 31, May 31, Feb 28, Nov 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2003 2005 2005 2004
Revenues 73.499 11.957 68,798 20.206 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Cost of : . ‘
sales and 179.168 | 321498 | 237.950 | 118,765 | 105572 | 236.961 | 270,730 | 104955 | 120,678
gxpenses . .
Net loss for . n ) ‘ e .- . . -
. 105,669 309541 169.152 98.339 103,572 236,961 270,730 104,955 120678
the period . Sk
Number of
common m . - - - . .
shares 33,112,762 | 53,112,762 | 50,398,562 | 50,277,137 | 48,884,083 | 48,881,083 | 48,881,083 | 44,609,265 | 43,164.962
ouistanding
Net loss
per 0020 0058 0034 0020 0022 0033 0055 0024 0028
common
share
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Kelso Technologies Inc,
CEOQO’S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Three Months Ended November 30, 2006

— == y—

- Sglecged Annual_Information:

Aug 31, Aug 31, Aug 31,
2006 20035 2004

Revenues: 100,961 Nil Nil
Cost of Sales and Expenses: ', 783'.785 ; . 753,324 636,286
Net loss for the period 632,824 " 753324 636,286
Number of common shares 53012762 ~. | & - 48,881,083 41,597,932
outstanding
Net loss per common share 0129 0154 .0153
Total Assets 46,127 113.871 87.930

Subsequent Events

On January 3, 2007, Kelso obtained, at its request, a management cease trade order to allow
additional time for preparing its audited financial statements. The staterments normally due
December 29, 2006 could not be produced due to delays caused by a change in financial
reguiations affecting ali companies, These changes required Kelso to separate its accounting from
its auditing functions and locate and appoint new auditors who had insufficient time to produce the
financials as a result of their office Christmas closure.

On January 11 & 12, 2007, Kelso's VP of Engineering, attended a specialized high flow testing
facility in Colorado where tests were conducted on two new models of valves, a low flow design
based on the existing 1S75 and a low flow JS165 pressure relief valve. The results were successful
- and Kelso is currently in the process of preparing applications to the AAR for approval and
certification for testing, respectively. Kelso is also testing a third new design in January - a high
flow version of its 1$75 for future application to ethano! transport tan cars.

Subsequent to November 30, 2006, a private placement was announced, which consists of
4,500,000 units at a price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit will consist of one commeon share and one
share purchase warrant. Each warrant will entitle the holder to acquire an additional common
share in the capital of the Company at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of two years from
closing. The anticipated closing date is February 23, 2007.

If you have any questuons, please call Kelso at 604.878.7600 ext. 4 or toll free at 866.535.7685
ext. 4.

Kelso thanks you .
John L. Carswell
President & CEO

Kelso Technologies Inc.
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MANAGEMENT’S COMMENTS ON
-UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l' The accompanyil;g‘ 1j1haudited interim financial statements of Keléol'i"echnologies Inc., as at November 30,
..2006 and for-thle tlhréé.}:ﬁonﬂ';s ended November 30, 2006 and 2005 have been prepared by and are the
'-rcsponsibility of tlie Company’s management. In accordance with National Instrument 51 — 102, the
company discloses that its auditors have not reviewed the accompanying unaudited interim financial

statements for the three months ended November 30, 2006.



DLLOV LECOANULARAFIED 1IN,
(a development stage company)

Balance Sheets
November 30, 2006
(Unaudited — prepared by management)

- Nevember 30, August 31,
D 2006 2006
ASSETS
Current
Cash S 88,555 § 30,484
Accounts receivable 5,280 9.884
Goods and Services Tax receivable 3,179 2,689
Prepaid expenses - 518 485
s 97532 § 43,542
Equipment : R CE T 2,411 2.585
" B 99943 % 46127
LIABILITIES
Current;
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S 263,519 § 201.479
SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Capital Stock
Common shares $ 7,962,649 $ 7,962,649
Share subscriptions 113,208 13,208
Contributed surplus 136,354 138,909
Deficit {8.375,787) (8.270.118)
$ {163,576) % (155.352)
s 99,943 3 46,127
APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
“John L. Carswell Director

"William E. Troy Director




. KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.-

-,(a development stage company)

Conso!idatgg Statements of Operations and Deficit

Novemnber 30, 2006

. (unaudited - prepared by management)

Three Months

Three Months

_ Ended Ended
November 30, November 30,
2006 2005

Revenue “§ . 73,499 § -

Cost of sales 40,728 -

Gross profit S R A i ) B | -

Expenses: _ N

Accounting and legal $ 6,742 0 §. 29,545

Advertising - 643 465

Amortization 174 260

. Automobile - 1,548 1,080

Bank charges and interest " 830 471

: Consulting and investor relations 24,438 33,839

License and fees : 200 -

* Management fees 36,71'9 ‘ 38,897

Management salaries 30,000 ' -

Office and general 5,584 8.863

Rent . - 3,839 -

Telephone 1,257 2,059

Travel _ _ 7,180 1,608

' $ 119,154 § 117.087
Loss before the undemnoted $ (86,383) $ . (117,087)

Interestincome - 325 250
Research and development costs (22,166) (26,158)
Stock-based compensation 2,555 _ (1,391)
‘Net loss for the period = = 3 (105,669) ° § (144,386)
Deficit, beginning of period - (8270.118) __ (7.587.294)
Deficit, end of period $ (83757871 $ (7.731.680)
Basic and diluted loss per share s (0,002) % (0,003)
Weighted average number of shares § 53112762 § 483881457
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(a development stage company)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Neovember 30, 2006

(unaudited ~ prepared by management)

Three Months

Three Months
Ended Ended
November 30, November 30,
2006 2003
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Net loss for the period $ (105,669 % (144,386)
Add: items not affecting cash '
- amortization 174 260
- stock-based compensation (2.555) 1,391
$ (108,050) $ (142,735)
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 4,604 -
Goods and Services Tax receivable {490) {3,272)
Inventory - (6,643)
Prepaid expenses (33) 13,931
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 62.040 35.545
$ (41,929) § (103,174)
Cash flows from financing activities .
Issuance of common shares $ - ¥ 300
Funds advanced for share subscriptions 100,000 25.837
g 100,000 26,137
Increase (decrease) in cash during the period $ 58,071 % (77,037)
Cash, beginning of period - 30.484 86.205
Cash, end of period $ 88555 8 9,168
Supplementary information: :
Interest paid 3 - $ 471

Income taxes paid $ =




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
.November 30, 2006

- (unaudited = bfepared by management)

1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The company is in the process of researching and developmg various types of pressure relief valves. The
company has completed the two year Service Trial of the JS75 Pressure Relief Valve required by the
Association of Amencan Rallroads a.nd is in the ﬁnal stages towards commercnahzatxon

The JS75 Pressure Rehef Valve s a patentcd product whose apphcatlon is in the transportation and
storage of hazardous and non-hazardous materials:’

BASIS OF VALUATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business for the -
foreseeable future. The company’s ability to nieet its obligations as they fall due and to continue to
operate as a going concern is dependent on the continued financial support of the creditors and the
shareholders and ultimately, the attainment of profitable operations.

"EQUIPMENT
. Nét Cairying A:I:lount
Accumulated - November 30, ~. August 31,
Cost Amortization ~ 2006 2006
Office equipment $ 10956 $ 9,187 8 1,769 . § 1,862
Computer equipment 1,365 723 - 642 723

g . 1232] $ - 9,910 $ 2411 ' 3 2,585




(a development stage company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
November 30, 2006

(unaudited — prepared by management)

4, SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized:
100,000,000 Class "A" Preference shareé without par »;aiuc non-cumulative,
of which 5,000,000 are designated Class "A" Comemble Votmg,
Preference: Shares Series I
100,000,000 Common shares, wﬁhout par value
Issued:

a) Common shares

November 30@'06 L August 31, 2006

‘Number of . _ Number of
~ Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance, beginning of period 53,112,762 § 7,962,649 48,881,083 § 7527034
Issued during the period:
- for cash (net of issue costs) - - 4,107,254 403,240
- for exercise of share R
purchase warrants . - 50,000 7,000
- for exercise of stock .
options o o- - 3,000 300
- Reallocated from contributed ' '
surplus . : - -o- - 75
- for conversion of
preference shares - - 71,425 25.000

Balance, end of period 3 7 62.649 53112762 8 7962649




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
‘(a development stage company)

- Notes to'Consolidated Financial Statements
November 30, 2006
' (unaudited — prepared by management)

4. SHARE CAPITAL, continued

b) Stock Option Plan

Dunng the penod no stock optlons were exercised, 98,257 stock options expired and no stock options
were cancelled,

.
It

The foIlowing stockl‘options are outstanding at November 30, 2006:

c)

Number of Exercise

- Shartes Price _ Expirv Date
410,875 $ 010 ‘September 4, 2007
206,071 $ 0.10 November 4, 2007
238,500 g 0.10 March 23, 2008

1,268,422 $ 0.10 December 29 2008

1,935,775 b 0.1 February 24, 2010
278,100 $

0.10 September 26,2010

Stock-Based Compensation’
The company applies thé fair value method of accbunuﬁg for stock-based compenééilon awards.
During the period, 98,257 stock options expired resulting in a stock-based compensanon gxpense
adjustment of$2 533 .

Share Purchase Warrants:

The following share purchase warrants are outstanding at November 30, 2006:

Number of Exercise - .
Shares Price ' Expiry Date
4,221,818 $ 014 ', April 20, 2007
2,472,400 $ 015 ... June 26,2007
; -100,000 $ 015 7 July 12,2007
141,800 $ 015 August 18, 2007
1,374,380 $ 0

0.15 January ll, 2008

During the period, no share purchase warrants were granted, exercised, forfeited or expired.



(a development s;dg; c_orr;pén )
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
November.30, 2006

(unaudited — prepared by management)

3.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are directors and officers, companies controlled by the directors and officers, a company
controlled by a former officer and a company whose principal is-an officer of the company.

The following summarizes the company’s related party transactions for the period:

November "30,' August 31,

2006 2006
Automobile $ 1,465 $ 12,190
Consulting and investor relations $ - $ 46,000
Legal . : $ 2,977 $ 82,065
Management fees ‘ S 36,719 ) 166,085
Management salaries 5 30,000 3 82,932
Rent , $ 3,839 $ 19,438
Research and development costs $ 20,328 $ 100,000

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilitics are $190,597 (August 31, 2006 - $96,533) to related
parties. o ‘ s ‘ '

Included in prepaid expenses are $518 (August 31, 2006 - $nil) expended to related parties.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

. . November 30, August31,
Non-cash transactions are as follows: ’ ' 2006 2006
Contributed surplus - stock-based compensation RS 2,555 $ 1,391
Conversion of preference shares to common shares $ - $ 25,000
Funds advanced in current year for share subscription ) 100,000 $ 13,208

...continues




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
November 30, 2006

(unaudited — prepared by management)

7. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Management Agreement:

By agreement dated February 1, 1996 and subsequently amended, the company entered into an agreement
with a director to serve the company and its subsidiary as an executive officer. In consideration, the
company agreed to pay $11,000 U.S. per month plus office rent and automobile allowance. The
agrecment was terminated with the resignation of the director on QOctober 31, 2006.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to November 30, 2006, the Company obtained, at its request, a management cease trade order
to allow additional time for preparing its audited. financial statements. The statements normally due
December 29, 2006 could not be produced due to delays caused by a change in financial regulations
affecting all companies. These changes required Kelso to separate its accounting from its auditing
functions and locate and appoint new auditors who had insufficient time to produce the financials asa
result of their office Christmas closure.

Subsequent to November 30, 2006, a private placement was announced, which consists 0f 4,500,000 units
at a price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit will consist of one common share and one share purchase warrant.
Each warrant will entitle the holder to acquire an additional common-share in the capital of the Company
at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of two years from closing. The anticipated closing date 1s
February 23, 2007,



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC. (the
"Company™) will be held at Suite 2760 — 200 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, on Wednesday, February
28, 2007 at 12:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

10.

To receive and consider the Report of the Directors.

To receive and consider the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended August 31, 2006
together with the auditors' report thereon.

To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix the remuneration to be paid to the
auditors. L s

To fix the number of directors at four. L .

.E"-':‘ P ‘ ‘, ‘..-"_.'
To elect directors for the ensuing year. S e
To approve the Company's 2007 Stock Option Plan and authorize the Company, subject toregulatpry abproval,
to grant and amend stock options pursuant and subject to the terms and conditions of the 2007 Stock Option
Plan. . :

To consider and, if thought fit, pass a special resolution altering the Company’s Notice of Articles to remove the
application of certain provisions prescribed in the British Columbia Business Corporations Act called the “pre-
existing company provisions”, particulars of which are as set out in the Information Circular delivered herewith.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass a special resolution deleting the existing Articles of the Company in their
entirety and replacing them with a new form of Articles, such new form of Articles being consistent with the
terminology and provisions of the newly enacted British Columbia Business Corporations Act, particulars of
which are as set out in the Information Circular delivered herewith.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass a special resoulution altering the authoﬁz.ed share capital of the Company by
increasing the authorized number of common shares without par value and Class “A” Preference Shares without
par value to an unlimited number, particulars of which are as set out in the Information Circular delivered
herewith.

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

For full details of each of the foregoing items, please see the accompanying Information Circular.

Shareholders vnable to attend the Annual General Meeting in person are requested to read the enclosed Information
Circular and Proxy, and then complete and deposit the Proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it was signed or a notarially certified copy thereof with the Company's transfer agent, Pacific Corporate
Trust Company, of 2™ Floor, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, B.C., V6C 3B9 at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting or adjournment thereof. Unregistered shareholders who received
the Proxy through an intermediary must deliver the Proxy in accordance with the instructions given by such intermediary.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, this 31% day of January, 2007.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“John L. Carswell”

John L. Carswell, C.E.QO. & President




KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
INFORMATION CIRCULAR
THIS INFORMATION CIRCULAR CONTAINS INFORMATION AS AT JANUARY 31, 2007
L PERSONS MAKING THIS SOLiClTATlON OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of Proxies by the management of KELSO
TECHNOLOGIES INC. (the "Company") for use at the Annual General Meeting (the "Meeting") of the sharebolders
of the Company to be held at the time and place and for the purposes set fbrt_h in the accompanying Notice of Meeting,
and at any adjournment thereof. It is expected that the solicitation will be primarily by mail. Proxies may also be solicited
personally by employees of the Company. The cost of solicitation will be borne by the Company.

IL COMPLETION AND VOTING OF PROXTES

Voting at the Meeting will be by a show of hands, each shareholder having one vote, unless a poll is requested or required, in
which case each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each share held. A poll is required if the number of shares represented
byprox:esthataretobevotedagamstamotlonaregreatert}mns%ofﬁaevotesthatcouldbecastaztheMeetmgby
shareholders present in person or by proxy. In order to approve a motion proposed at the Mesting, a majority of greater than

50% of the votes cast will be required (an "ordinary resolution”) unless the motion requuas a spec:a] resolution in which case a
majority of 75% of the votes cast will be required.

The persons named in the accompanying Proxy as proxyholders are directors or senior officers of the Company. A
SHAREHOLDER OR AN INTERMEDIARY HOLDING SHARES AND ACTING ON BEHALF OF AN
UNREGISTERED SHAREHOLDER HAS THE RIGHT TO APPOINT A PERSON (WHO NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER) TO ATTEND AND ACT ON HIS BEHALF AT THE MEETING OTHER THAN THE PERSONS
NAMED IN THE PROXY AS PROXYHOLDERS. TO EXERCISE THIS RIGHT, THE SHAREHOLDER OR
INTERMEDIARY MUST STRIKE OUT THE NAMES OF THE PERSONS NAMED IN THE PROXY AS
PROXYHOLDERS AND INSERT THE NAME OF HIS NOMINEE IN THE SPACE PROVIDED OR COMPLETE
ANOTHER PROXY. S -

A shareholder or mtermedlary acting on behalf of a shareholder may indicate the manner in which the persons named in the
enclosedProxya:etovotemﬂJrespecttoanymatterbychechngtheappmpna:espaee On any poll required by virtue of 5%
or more of the votes that could be cast at the Meeungbemgrepresemﬁbypmxlesthatmtobevotedagamﬂamanerorbya
shareholder or proxyholder requesting a pol}, those persons will vote or withhold from voting the shares in respect of which
they are appointed in accordance with the directions, if any, given in the Proxy provided such directions are certain.

If the shareholder or intermediary acting on behalf of a shareholder wishes to confer a discretionary authority with respect to
any matter, then the space should be left blank. IN SUCH ]NS'I‘ANCE, THE PROXYHOLDER, IF ONE PROPOSED BY
MANAGEMENT, INTENDS TO VOTE THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY IN FAVOUR OF THE
MOTION. The enclosed Proxy, when. properly signed, also, confers discretionary authority with rcspect ‘to amendments or
variations to the matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to other matters which may be properly brought
before the Meeting. At the time of printing thxs Circular, the. management of the Company is not. aware that any such
amendments, variations or other matters are to be presented for action at the Meeting. If, however, other t matters whichare not
now known to the management should properly come before the Meetmg, the Proxies hereby sohclted wﬂl be exerclsed on such
matters in accordance with the best _]udgment of the nominees. .. .., .
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'I'heProxymustbedatedand sngnedbymeshareholderorbyhlsaitomeyauﬂlonzedmwnungorbymemermedlaryacungon
behalf of a shareholder. In the case of a corporation, the Proxy must be executed under its corpomte sml or slgned by a duly
authorized officer or altomey for the corporanon NI S fE e _— e
COMPLETED PROXIES TOGETHER WITH THE POWER OF ATTORNEY OR 0'I'HZER AU'I'HORI'I'Y F ANY UNDER
WHICH IT WAS SIGNED..OR-A-NOTARIALLY,. CER‘I'IFIED ‘COPY THEREOF -MUST BE DEPOSITED WITH THE
COMPANYS- TRANSFER - AGENT PACIFIC CORPORATE TRUST COMPANY "OF 2¢° FLOOR, 510 BURRARD
STREET, VANCOUVER, BRITISH COLUMBIA, VGC 3B9 AT LEAST 48 HOURS (EXCLUDING SATURDAYS'
SUNDAYS AND HOLIDAYS) BEFORE THE TIME OF THE MEETING OR ADJOURNMENT THEREOF.



DELIVER THE PROXY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN BY SUCH INTERMEDIARY.

Advice To Non Registered Shareholders

ONLY REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS OR DULY APPOINTED PROXYHOLDERS ARE PERMITTED TO
VOTE AT THE MEETING. SHAREHOLDERS WHO DO NOT HOLD THEIR SHARES IN THEIR OWN NAME
(REFERRED TO HEREIN AS "BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS") ARE ADVISED THAT ONLY PROXIES
FROM SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD CAN BE RECOGNIZED AND VOTED AT THE MEETING. Beneficial
Shareholders who complete and return an instrument of proxy must indicate thereon the person (usually a brokerage house
acting as an intermediary) who holds their shares as a registered sharehoider. Every such intermediary (a “broker”) has its own
mailing procedure, and provides its own return instructions, which should be carefully followed. The instrument of proxy
supplied to Beneficial Shareholders is identical to that provided to registered shareholders. However, its purpose is limited to
instructing the registered shareholder how to vote on behalf of the Beneficial Shareholder.

If common shares are listed in an account statement provided to a shareholder by a broker, then in almost all cases those shares
will not be registered in such shareholder's name on the records of the Company. Such shares will more likely be registered
under the name of the shareholder's broker or an agent of that broker. In Canada, the vast majority of such shares are registered
under the name of CDS & Co. (the registration name for The Canadian Depository for Securities, which company acts as
nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms). Common shares held by brokers or their nominees can only be voted (for or
against resolutions) upon the instructions of the Beneficial Shareholder. Without specific instructions, brokers/nominees are
prohibited from voting shares for their clients. The directors and officers of the Company do not generally know for whose
benefit the common shares registered in the name of CDS & Co. are held.

In accordance with National Instrument 54-101 - Communication with Beneficial Owners of Securities of a Reporting Issuer,
the Company has distributed copies of the Notice of Meeting, this Information Circular and the Proxy to the clearing agencies
and intermediaries for onward distribution to Beneficial Shareholders. Applicable regulatory policy requires
intermediaries/brokers to seek voting instructions from Beneficial Shareholders in advance of shareholders' meetings unless the
Beneficial Shareholders have waived the right to receive meeting materials. Every intermediary/broker has its own mailing
procedures and provides its own return instructions, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial Shareholders in order to
ensure that their common shares are voted at the Meeting. Often the form of proxy supplied to a Beneficial Shareholder by its
broker is identical to the form of proxy provided by the Company to the registered shareholders. However, its purpose is limited
to instructing the registered shareholder how to vote on behalf of the Beneficial Shareholder. Should a Beneficial Shareholder
receiving such a form wish to vote at the Meeting, the Beneficial Shareholder should strike out the names of the Management
Proxyholders named in the form and insert me Bencﬁcml Shareholder's name m the blank provided and return the materials to
the broker as directed.

The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtalmng instructions from clients to Independent ADP Investor
Communications Services ("ADP"). ADP typically applm a special sticker to the proxy forms, mails those forms to the
Beneficial Shareholders and asks Beneficial Shareholders to°return the proxy forms to ADP. ADP then tabulates the results of
all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of common shares to be represented at the
Meeting. A BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDER RECEIVING A PROXY WITH AN ADP STICKER ON IT CANNOT
USE THAT PROXY TO VOTE COMMON SHARES DIRECTLY AT THE MEETING - THE PROXY MUST BE
RETURNED TO ADP WELL IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING IN ORDER TO HAVE THE COMMON SHARES
VOTED. All references to shareholders in this Information Circular and the accompanying Instrument of Proxy and Notice of
Meeting are to shareholders of record unless specifically "stated otherwise. In addition, there are two kinds of Beneficial
Owners - those who object to their names being made known to the issuers of securities which they own being called Objecting
Beneficial Owners ("OBOQs™) and those who do not object to the issuers of the securities they own knowing who they are being
called Non-Objecting Beneficial Owners ("NOBOs"). - Up’ ‘until September 2002, companies had no knowledge of the identity
of any of their beneficial owners including NOBOs. Subject however to the provisions of National Instrument 54-101,
Communication with Beneficial Owners of Securities of Reporting Issuers, after September 1, 2002 i issuers could request and
obtain a list of their NOBOs from intermediaries via their transfer agents. Prior to September 1, 2004 issuers could obtain this
NOBO list and use it for specific purposes connected with the affairs of the Company except for the distribution of proxy-
related materials directly to NOBQs. This was stage one of the mplementanon of the Instrument. For shareholder meetings
taking place on or after September 1, 2004, issuers can obtain and use this NOBO list for distribution of proxy-related materials
directly (not via ADP) to NOBOs. This is stage two of the u-nplementatmn of the Instrument.
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This year, the Company has decided to take advantage of those provisions of National Instrument 54-101 that permit it to
directly deliver proxy-related materials to its NOBOs. As a result NOBOs can expect to receive a scannable Request for Voting
Instructions Form (VIF) from our transfer agent, Pacific Corporate Trust Company (“PCT™). These VIFs are to be completed
and returned to PCT in the envelope provided or by facsimile. PCT will tabulate the resuits of the VIFs received from NOBOs
and will provide appropriate instructions at the Meeting with respect to the shares represented by the VIFs they receive.

. REVOCATION OF PROXIES

A shareholder who, or an intermediary acting on behalf of a shareholder which, has given a Proxy has the power to revoke it.
Revocation can be effected by an instrument in writing signed by the intermediary or shareholder or his attorney authorized in
writing, and, in the case of a corporation, executed under its corporate seal or signed by a duly authorized officer or attorney for
the corporation and either delivered to the registered office of the Company at Suite 2760 - 200 Granville Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, V6C 1S4 at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting, or any
adjournment thereof, or deposited with the Chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting, prior to the hour of
commencement.

1v. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

None of the directors or senior officers of the Company, nor any person who has heid such a position since the beginning of the
last completed financial year of the Company, nor any proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company, nor any
associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons, has any substantial or material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial
ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted on at the Meeting other than the election of directors or the
appointment of auditors except for the insiders of the Company, generally, inasmuch as they may be recipients of future options
to purchase shares of the Company pursuant the Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan, approva] of which will be sought at the
Meeting.

V. VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The Company has one class of shares entitled to be voted at the Meeting, namely, Common shares. All issued shares are
entitled to be voted at the Meeting and each has one non-cumulative vote. There are 53,112,762 Common shares issued and
outstanding.

Only those shareholders of record on January 24, 2007 will be emltled to vote at the Meetmg or any a.djoumment thereof.

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of the Company, no persons beneﬁcxa]ly own, dlrectly or indirectly, or
exercise control or direction over shares carrying more than 10% of the voting nghts attached to all outsmndmg shares of the
Company which have the nght to vote in alt cucmnstances .

VL ELECTIONOFDIRECTORS B , e = ‘

R .‘i, .
Management proposes to nominate the persons named in the followmg table for election as directors of the Company Each
elected director will hold office until the end of his elected term of office or until his successor is duly elected or appointed,
unless his office is earller vacated in accordance with the Artlcles of the Company or he becomes dlsquahﬁed to act as a
director. S o - :
It is proposed to ﬁx the number of du‘ectors at four ~This requu'es ‘the approval of the shaneholders of the Company by an
ordmary rwolunon, which a.pprova.l will be sought at the Meetmg - .

e -
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Name & Present Position with Present Principal Occupation(s)(l) Previously a Shares Owned(%)
the Company Director

JOHN L. CARSWELL(®) C.E.O., C.F.O. and President of the Company. since June 1995 187,631
Director , C.E.O., C.F.O. and
President
BLAIR L. QUALEY() Director, Business Development, The Vancouver | since July 2004 Nil
Director Board Of Trade.
WH-'LIAM E. TROY(3) self employed businessman. since Nov. 2005 893,840
Director
ANDREW R. MALE self employed business man and a Director of | since Nov. 2006 Nil
Director Sola Resource Corp., Canasia Industries

' ’ Corporation and Cosco ESP Inc.

'4)) Includes occupations for preceding five years unless the director was elected at the previous Annual General Meeting
and was shown as a nominee for election as a director in the Information Circular for that meeting.

@ The approximate number of shares of the Company carrying the right to vote in all circumstances beneficially owned,
directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised by each proposed nominee as of December 31,
2006.

3) Member of Audit Committee.

The Company does not have an Executive Committee. Pursuant to the provisions of the BC Business Corporations Act, the
Company is required to have an Audit Committee whose members are indicated in the above chart.

All of the above persons are ordinarily resident in Canada, except for Mr. Troy who resides in the USA.

V. STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Disclosure . is provided herein respecting: (a) each CEO and CFO of the Company during the Company’s most recently
completed financial year, despite the amount of compensation of that individual; (b) each of the Company's four most highly
compensated executive officers, other than the CEO, who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently
completed financial year, provided that disclosure is not provided herein respecting an executive officer whose total salary and
bonus does not exceed $150,000; and (c) any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided under (b)
but for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of the Company at the end of the most recently
completed financial year end. For the purposes of this disclosure::

nexecutive officer” means an individual who at any time during the financial year was: (a) the chair of the Company, if that
individual performed the functions of the office on a full-time basis; (b) a vice-chair of the Company, if that individual
performed the functions of the office on a full-time basis; (c) the president of the Company; (d) a vice-president of the Company
in charge of a principal business unit, division or function such as sales, finance or production; or (e) an officer of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any other person who performed a policy-making function in respect of the Company, whether or
not the individual was also a director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

"SARS" or "stock appreciation right" means a right granted by the Company, as compensation for services rendered, to receive
a payment of cash or an issue or transfer of securities based wholly or in part on changes in the trading price of publicly traded

securities of the Company.
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"LTIP” or "long term incentive plan" means any plan which provides compensation intended to serve as incentive for
performance to occur over a period longer than one financial year, but does not include option or stock appreciation right plans
or plans for compensation through restricted shares or restricted share units.

Perquisites and other personal benefits, securities or property, if any, are disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table below
under the column entitled “Other Annual Compensation”, unless the aggregate amount of such compensation is no greater than
the lesser of $50,000 and 10 percent of the total of the annual salary and bonus of the executive officer for the financial year. If
applicable, each perquisite or other personal benefit exceeding 25 percent of the total perquisites and other personal benefits
reported for an executive officer are identified by type and amount in a footnote to the other annual compensation column.
Perquisites and other personal benefits are valued on the basis of the aggregate incremental cost to the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Summaﬂ Compensation Table (Canadian Dollars)

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation
- : Awards Payouts
Names and Principal Fiscal | Salary | Bonus | Other Annual | Securities Shares or LTIP | All Other
Positions of Applicable Year 69) ($) | Compensation Granted Units . | Payouts | Compen-
Executive Officers " Ending (%) Under Subject to (63)] sation
: Options/ Resale ($)
SARS Restrictions
Granted ¢}
#
Stephen L. Grossman, | Aug.31- | - Nil' - | Nil $132,000 228,100 Nil Nil $7,800
Former Executive .2006 . . UusD usp®
Officer and Former .
CEO & CFO® Aug. 31 Nil Nil $134,800 843,150 Nil Nil | $49,300%
2005 .
Aug.31 | Nil Nil $132,000 | 1,924,429 Nil Nil n/a
2004 : ,
John L. Carswell, Aug.31 Nil " | Nil $120,000® Nil _Nit Nil $6,000°
President, CEO & CFO | 2006
Aug.31 | Nil |- Nit | $7,500% | 362,625 Nil Nil n/a
2005 '

) Vacation pay in respect of unused vacation for six out of 10 years between 1994 and 2004, due to Mr. Grossman’s
workload not allowing full vacation time.

2) Includes repricing during fiscal year of 1,101,743 previously granted options.

3) Mr. Grossman ceased to be the Chairman and a director of the Company on October 31, 2006 as well as the President
and CEO of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Kelso, Technolog:es (USA)Inc.

4) Automobile allowance. )

(5) Century Communications Corp..(100% owned by, John L Carswell) was pmd unul Docember 31, 2005 for prowdlng
the services of Mr. Carswell. Thereafter Mr. Carswell' was paid personally for his services. $35 000 of annual
compensation has been accrued and is cun‘ently tmpmd Century Communications Corp. was pald $6,000 vacation pay
in respect of unused vacatlon : .

v N

The terms and condxtlons of the current employment contract o arrangement with the above memloned executive officers is as
follows: : -

. g
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President of the Company.

No LTIP has been instituted by the Company and none are proposed at this time. Accordingly, there is no LTIP Awards Table
set out in this Information Circular,

The Company does not have a "Compensation Committee”. The directors of the Company do not have any specific policies for
determining compensation of executive officers.

No pension plans or retirement benefit plans have been instituted by the Company and none are proposed at this time.

Option/Sar Grants During The Most Recently Compieted Financial Year

% of Total Market Value of
Names of Applicable Securities Options/SARS Exercise or Securities
Executive Officers | Under Option/ Granted to Base Price Underlying Expiration Date
SARS granted Employees in ($/Security) Options/SARS on
# Financial Year the Date of Grant
($/Security)
Stephen L. Grossman 228,100 0.82% $0.10 Nil Feb. 26, 2010

Aggregate Option/Sar Exercises During The Most Recently Completed Financial Year And Financial Year-End
Option/Sar Values

Value of Unexercised in the
Unexercised Options/SARS at Money Options/SARS at
Fiscal Year End (#) Fiscal Year End ($)
Names of Applicable Securities Aggregate
Executive Officers Acquired on Value Exercisable/Unexercisabie Exercisable/Unexercisable
Exercise (#) Realized (3)
Stephen L. Grossman 3,000 Nil 1,997,000 exercisable Nil Exercisable
John L. Carswell Nl Nil 1,000,000 exercisable Nil Exercisable

Option/Sar Repricings During The Most Recently Completed Financial Year

There were no option/SAR repricings during the most recently completed financial year.

Compensation Of Directors

None of the directors of the Company were compensated by the Company or its subsidiaries during the most recently completed
financial year for their services in their capacity as directors, nor for services as consultants or experts, except for Stephen L.
Grossman and John L. Carswell who received consulting' fees for acting as officers of the Company (see Summary
Compensation Table above). - T A S ‘

NERrRt

VIIL INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

Since the beginning of the' Company’s most recently completed financial year, no officers, directors, employees or former
officers, directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries have been indebted to the Company or its subsidiaries.




IX. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND
INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

None of the directors or senior officers of the Company, nor any proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company,
nor any person who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all
outstanding shares of the Company, nor any associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons has any material interest, direct or
indirect, in any transaction since the commencement of the Company's last completed financial year or in any proposed
transaction which, in either case, has or will materially affect the Company except as disclosed herein.

X REMUNERATION AND APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
The persons named in the enclosed Proxy will vote for the appointment of Smythe Ratcliffe, of Suite 700, Marine Building, 355

Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 2G8, as auditors for the Company to hold office until the next Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders, at a remuneration to be fixed by the directors. Smythe Ratcliffe was appointed as auditors

* on November 23, 2006.

XII. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Aundit Committee's Charter .
Mandate

The primary function of the audit committee (the "Committee”) is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its financial
oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial statements and other financial information provided by the Company to
regulatory authorities and shareholders, the Company's systems of internal controls regarding finance and accounting and the
Company's auditing, accounting and financial reporting processes. The Company’s external auditors must report directly to the
Committee. The Committee's primary duties and responsibilities are to:

@ Serve as an independent and objective party to monitor the Company's ﬁnancna.l reporting and internal controls system
and review the Company’s financial statements; )

(ii) Review and appraise the performance of the Company’s external auditors; and

(ii) Provide an open avenue of communication among the Company’s auditors, financial and senior management and the
Board of Directors.

Composition

The Committee shall be comprised of three directors as determined by the Board of Directors, the majority of whom are not
employees, control persons (as defined by the BC Securities Act); or officers of the Company or its associates or affiliates.
Ideally, ali members of the Committee shall be free from any relaticnship that, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, would
interfere with the exercise of his independent judgment as 2 member of the Committee. At least one member of the Committee
shall have accounting or related financial management expertise. All members of the Committee that are not financially literate
should work towards becoming financially literate to obtain a working famitiarity with basic finance and accounting practices.
For the purposes of the Charter, the definition of "financially literate” is the ability to read and understand a set of financial
statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and
complexity of the issues that can presumably be expected to be raised by the Company’s financial statements. The Committee
must comply with the requirements of Multllateral Instrument 52-110 ("MI 52-110"). I . .

The members of the Committec shall be elected by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the annual shareholders'
meeting. Unless a Chair is elected by ‘the full Board of Directors, the members of the Committee may designate a Chair by a
majority vote of the full Committee membership.

Meetings

The Commiittee shall meet a least 4 times annually, or more frequently as circumstances dictate, in person or by telephone
conference call.

“®,




Responsibilities and Duties

To fulfill its responsibilities and duties, the Committee shall:

Documents/Reports Review
(a) Review and, as necessary or appropriate, update the Charter annuaily.

() Review the Company's annual and interim financial statements, MD&A and any earnings press releases before the
Company publicly discloses this information and any reports or other financial information, which are submitted to any
governmental body, or to the public, including any certification, report, opinion, or review rendered by the external
auditors.

External Auditors

(a) Annually review the performance of the external auditors who shall be ultimately accountable to the Board of Directors
and the Committee as representatives of the shareholders of the Company.

) Recommend to the Board of Directors the selection and, where applicable, the replacement of the external auditors
nominated annually for shareholder approval.

(c) Review with management and the external auditors the audit plan for the year-end financial statements.

(d) Review and pre-approve all andit and audit-related services and the fees and other compensation related thereto, and
any non-audit services, provided by the Company's external auditors. . :

Provided the pre-approval of the non-audit services is presented to the Committee's first scheduled meeting following such
approval, such authority may be delegated by the Committee to one or more independent members of the Committee.

Financial Reporting Processes

{a) In consultation with the external auditors, review with management the integrity of the Company's financial reporting
process, both internal and external.

)] Consider the external auditors' judgments about the quality and appropriateness of the Company's accounting principles
as applied in its financial reporting.

(c) Consider - and- approve, if appropriate, changes to the Company's auditing and accounting principles and practices as
suggested by the external auditors and management:"~ = .= e T

(d) Following completion of the annual audit, review. separately with mahagement and the external auditors any significant

difficulties encountered during the course of the audit, including any restrictions on the scope of work or access to

required information. | L
(e) Review any significant disagreement among management and:the external'auditors in connection with the preparation
of the financial statements. BT T ST T P S I
3] ' Review with the external auditors and management the-extent to which changes and ‘improvements in financial or

o

accounting practices have been implemented.

() Review any complaints or concerns about any questionable accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing
matters.

i
|
i
|
;
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{h) Establish a procedure for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regardmg
questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The following are the members of the Committee:

Independent @ Financially Literate ("®
John L. Carswell No Yes
Blair L. Qualey Yes Yes
William E. Troy Yes Yes

(1)} As defined by Ml 52-110. ‘ .
(2) See the heading “Exemption” below.

Audit Committee Oversight

Atno tlme since the commencement of the Company's most recently completed financial year was a recommendation of the
Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the Board of Directors.

Reliance on Certain Exémpﬁons
At no time since the commencement of the Company's most recently completed financial year has the Company reliéd on the
exemption in Section 2.4 of MI 52-110 (De Minimis Non-audit Services), or an exemption from MI 52-110, in whole or in part,
granted under Part 8 of Ml 52-110. .

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Committee has not adopted specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit services.

External Auditdr Service Fees (By Caie_g(.)'ﬂ‘[

The aggregate fees billed by the Company's external auditors in each of the last two fiscal years are as follows:

Financial Year Audit Fees Audit Related Tax Fees All Other Fees
Ending S ! Fees : )
August 31, 2006 $15.000 est. Nil Nil $7,500
August 31,2005 . . $8,500 . . Nl . Nil ‘ . $6,900

Exemption

The Company is relying on the exemption provided under Section 6.1 of Ml 52-1 10 whnch exempt.s it ﬁ'om the reqmrements
for the members of the Commiitee to be independent and financially:literate. - : ‘ : ~

XL  MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS «'+'- Fef oo o

Management services for the Compa.ny are not, to a.ny matenal degree performed by persons other than the senior officers of
the Company. _ :
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2006 Stock Option Plan

In accordance with Policy 4.4 of the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”), all listed companies are required to adopt a formal
stock option plan. The Company last adopted a stock option plan in 2006, which was approved by the Company’s shareholders
at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on January 20, 2006. In the unlikely event that the Company’s shareholder’s do
not approve the 2607 Stock Option Plan, the 2006 Stock Option Pian and all previously issued options shall nevertheless
continue. However, the Company would not be in a position to grant future options to new employees or anyone else.
In the opinion of management, this might severely restrict the growth and profitability of the Company.

The Company hereby seeks shareholder approval for the Company to adopt a fresh stock option plan (the "2006 Plan") in
accordance with and subject to the rules and policies of the TSX-V. The 2006 Plan is being established in order to provide
incentive to directors, officers, employees, management, and others who provide services to the Company to act in the best
interests of the Company as well as to provide incentive to such persons to increase their interest in the Company and thereby
aid the Company in attracting, retaining and encouraging the continued involvement of such persons with the Company. It is
proposed that under the 2007 Plan, which will be subject to approval by the TSX-V, the total number of common shares allotted
and reserved for future issuance will be equivalent to 10% of the issued and outstanding share capital of the Company from time
to time. All outstanding options, whether granted under the 2006 Plan or otherwise, shall be included in the aforesaid
percentage. There are currently 4,436,000 options outstanding, equivalent to approximately 8% of the current issued and
outstanding share capital of the Company. Accordingly, unless some of the existing options are exercised, cancelled or
lapse, only the balance of the aforesaid 10% may be granted unless apd until the issued and outstanding share capital
increases.

Regulatory Requirements

The Company's common shares trade on the TSX-V, which requires that listed companies obtain the approval of their
shareholders for stock option plans where the plan reserves for issuance pursuant to stock options a number of shares equivalent
to a “rolling” percentage of the Company’s issued and outstanding share capital.

Disinterested shareholder approval must be obtained where:

(a) a stock option plan, together with all of the Company's previously established or proposed stock option grants could
result at any time in:

{1 the number of shares reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options granted to Insiders exceeding 10% of the
Company’s outstanding share capital;

(i) the issuance to Insiders, within a one year period, of a number of shares exceeding 10% of the Company’s
outstanding share capital; or

(iif) except in the case of a Tier 1 issuer, the issuance to any one Insider and such Insider’s associates, within a one
year period, of a number of shares exceeding 5% of the Company’s outstanding share capital; or

(b) the Company is decreasing the exercise price of stock options previously granted to Insiders.

If disinterested shareholder approval is required, the plan must be approved by a majority of the votes cast by all shareholders at
the shareholders’ meeting excluding votes attaching to shares owned by:-

() Insiders to whom options may be issued under the stock option plan; and
(ii) associates of persons referred to in item (i) above.

Holders of non-voting and subordinate voting shares are to be given full voting rights on a resolution which requires
* disinterested shareholder approval.

The term "Insider” is defined in the Securities Act (British Columbia) and generally includes directors, senior officers, the five
highest paid employees and holders of greater than 10% of the voting securities of the Company.
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The Company's Insiders will participate in the Company's 2007 Plan. Insiders, as a group, currently hold all options allocated
under previous stock option grants.

The 2007 Plan, together with previous stock option grants, could result in the issuance to Insiders, within a one year period, of
a number of shares exceeding 10% of the Company’s outstanding share capital. Accordingly, management will ask
disinterested shareholders to approve the 2007 Plan (see "Disinterested Shareholder Approval™ below).

Terms of the 2007 Plan

A full copy of the 2007 Plan will be available at the Meeting for review by shareholders. Also, shareholders may obtain copies
of the 2007 Plan from the Company prior to the Meeting, on request. The following is a summary of the 2007 Plan:

The 2007 Plan will only terminate when terminated by the Company. Any options outstanding when the 2007 Plan is
terminated will remain in effect until they are exercised or-they expu'e

The 2007 Plan provides that stock options can be issued to du'ectors, senior officers, employees, full-time dependent
contractors, part-time dependént contractors and consultants of the Company ‘or any: of its affiliates or subsidiaries or to
employees of companies providing management or administrative services to the Company. The 2007 Plan also provides for
amendment of stock options granted under the 2007 Plan or granted prior to implementation of the Company’s first stock option
plan.

The 2007 Plan provides that it is solely within the discretion of the Board to determine who should receive options and in what
amounts. Further, the Board may delegate such am.honty as it sees ‘it to a committee comprised of 2 or more du'ectors

Options granted under the 2007 Plan will be for a term not to exceed 5 years from the date of theu' grant unless the Company
becomes categorized as a Tier ] issuer (or equivalent), in which case the maximum term will be 10 years from the date of grant.
The options will be non-ass:gnable except that they will be exermsable by the personal representative of the option holder in the
event of the option holder’s death.

Pursuant to the policies of TSX-V, all stock options and any shates issued on the exercise of stock options will be legended
with a four month hold penod from the daIe the stock optxons are granted

Pursuant to the policies of TSX-V, options gm.nted under the terms of the 2007 Plan will be exercisable at a price which is not
less than the Discounted Market Price (which is the market price less a discount of 25% for a closing price of up to $0.50, a
discount of 20% for a closing price of $0.51 to $2.00, and a discount of 15% for a closing price above $2.00, subject to a
minimum of $0.10 and to certain exemptions described in the TSX-V policy manual). For as long as the Company is
categorized as a Tier 2 issuer, options granted to a person who is engaged in investor relations activities will expire within a
maximum of 30 days after the Optionee ceases to be employed énd options granted to all other persons will expire within a
maximum of 90 days from the date the Optionee ceases to hold his or her position or office.

All of the other provisions described in this Information Circular regarding the TSX-V's policy in respect of stock options are
incorporated in the 2007 Plan. o

The Company will not issue shares pursuant to options granted under the 2007 Plan unui the shares hnve been fully paid for.
The Company will not provide financial assistance to opticn holders to assist them in exercising their options.

Disinterested Shareholder Approval _

P S B

To meet all of the requirements of TSX-V (see "Regulatory Requut.ments" above), the Company must obtaln the approva.l of its
disinterested shareholders to establish the 2006 Plan and to grant arid amend options granted thereunder. Such approval will be
sought at the Meeﬁng .

For the purposes of the vote; none of the Company's Insmen; or their assoc;ates may vote on the matter.



Introduction

On March 29, 2004, the British Columbia legislature enacted the Business Corporations Act (the “New Act™) and repealed the
Company Act (the “Former Act”) which previously governed the Company. The New Act removes many of the restrictions
contained in the Former Act, including restrictions on the residency of directors, the place of annual general meetings and limits
on authorized share capital. The New Act also uses new forms and terminology. In accordance with the New Act, the Company
has filed a transition application with the Registrar of Companies, the principal element of which involved replacing the
Company's Memorandum with a new form designated as a Notice of Articles.

The Company is seeking shareholder approval to amend its Notice of Articles by removing certain preexisting company
provisions (the “Pre-existing Provisions™) which relate to certain restrictions contained in the Former Act (that are no longer
required under the New Act, but continue to apply until approved for removal by the shareholders). In addition, the Company is
also seeking shareholder approval to replace the Company’s current articles (the “Existing Articles™) with new articles (the
“New Articles”) which will incorporate some of the more flexible provisions of the New Act and also better reflect certain
provisions of the New Act. The directors of the Company believe that amending the Company’s Notice of Articles to delete the
Pre-existing Provisions and then replacing the Existing Articles with the New Articles will enable the Company to be more
efficient, flexible and cost-effective and will bring the Company’s charter documents into line with the New Act.

In order to be effective, special resolutions must be approved by a three-quarter majority vote cast by those shareholders of the
Company who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy at the Meeting in respect of such resolutions.

The directors of the Company believe that the passing of the following special resolutions is in the best interests of the
Company and recommend that shareholders of the Company vote in favor of the resolutions.

Removal of Application of Pre-existing Company Provisions

Under the New Act, a company existing under the Former Act is subject to Pre-existing Provisions reflecting certain restrictions
contained in the Former Act that are required to be incorporated in its Notice of Articles. The Pre-existing Provisions remain
operative until the shareholders of the company remove them by special resolution. If Pre-existing Provisions are to be removed
from a company’s Notice of Articles, they must be removed in their entirety. Because the Company is a reporting issuer, the
only significant Pre-existing Provision that is applicable is the requirement that a special resolution be approved by not less than
three quarters (%) of the votes cast, as opposed to the two-thirds majority applicable under the BCA. Removal of the Pre-
existing Provisions will allow a special resolution of the. Company to be approved by a two-thirds majority vote, which will
provide the Company with greater flexibility for . future corporate activities and be conslstent with companies in other
jurisdictions. . , S :

Accordingly, aI the Meetmg, the shareholders of the Company wﬂl be asked to pass the following special resolution to alter the
Notice of Articles of the Company: : NP

“BE IT RESOLVED,-as a special resolution, that:

{a) the Pre-existing Company Provisions (as defined in the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) in the Notice of
Articles of the Company are hereby deleted;

(b) the Company’s Notlce of Amcles be altered accordxngly,

() any one director or officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute and deliver all such documents and
instruments, including the Notice of Alteration reflecting; the removal of the Pre-existing Company Provisions, and to do such
further acts as may be necessary to give full effect to this special resolution;.and . - )

(d) the board of directors of the Company is hereby authorized, at any time in its sole discretion, to determine whether or not to
proceed with this resolution without further approval, ratification or confirmation by the shareholders of the Company™.

This special resolution must be approved by a majority of three-quarters (3/4) of the votes cast by the shareholders of the
Company who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy at the Meeting in respect of such special resolution.
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The form of the proposed resolution set forth above is subject to such amendments as management may propose at the Meeting
but which do not materially affect the substance of the proposed resolution.

The Company’s board of directors recommends that shareholders vote in favor of the foregoing special resolution.
Proxies received in favor of management will be voted in favor of such special resolution, unless the shareholder has
specified in the proxy that the shares are to be voted against such resolution.

Adoption of New Articles

The Company proposes to replace its Existing Articles with the New Articles so that its articles will reflect the more flexible
provisions of the New Act and new terminology contained in the New Act. A summary of the main differences between the
Company’s Existing Articles and the New Am::les is contained in Appendlx A attached to this Information Circular.

A copy of the proposed form of New Articles is avmlable for inspection by shareholders during normal business hours at any
time up to the Meeting at the Company’s registered office locaxed at Suite 2760, 200 Granville Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia and will be available ai the Meeting. ' .

At the Meeting, the shareholders of the Company wﬂl be asked to pass the followmg specla.l resolution to adopt the New
Articles for the Company:

“BE IT RESOLVED as a special resolutlon, that

(a) the Articles of the Company be a]tered by deletlng and cancelmg the existing Am::les and that the form of Articles presented
to the meeting, and initialed for identification by the President of the Company on the first and last pages thereof, be adopted as
the Articles of the Company in substitution for, and to the excluswn of, the ensung Articles of the Company;

{b) any one dlrector or ofﬁcer of the Company be and is hereby authonzed to execute and deliver all such documents and
instruments, including any required Notice of Alteranon, and to do such further acts as may be necessary to give full effect to
the foregoing; and

(c) the board of directors of the Company is hereby authorized, ai any time in its absolute discretion, to determine whether or
not to proceed with the foregoing w1thout furt.her approval mtlﬁcanon or conﬁrmatlon by the shareholders of the Compan}'

This special resolution must be approvod by a majority of ﬂuee-quarters (3/4) of the votes cast by the shareholders of the
Company who, being entitied to do so, vote in person or by proxy at the Meeting in respect of such special resolution. -

The form of the proposed resolunon set forth above is subjéct to such amendments as management may propose at the Meeting
but which do not matena.lly affec* the substance of the proposed resoiuhon

The Company s board of dlrectors recommends that shareholdels vote in favor of the foregomg special resolution.
Proxies received in favor of management will be voted in favor of such special resolntmn, unless the shareholder has

specified.in the proxy that the shares are to be voted against such resolution.

Alteration Of Share Capital

The authorized capital of the Company consists of 100,000,000 commeon shares without par value and 100,000,000 Class “A”
Preference shares. The board of: directors proposes that the Company alter its share capital by increasing the number of
authorized shares of each class to an unlimited number in order to give the Company maximum flexibility to pursue its
corporate objectives without incurring the expense of seeking shareholder authorization to amend its share capital further. -

At the Meeting, the shareholders® of the Company wxll be asked to pass the followmg Specxa.l resohmon to amend the. share
capital of the Company Tt D B e
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(2) The authorized share capital of the Company be altered by increasing the authorized number of common shares without par
value from 100,000,000 to an unlimited number; and

(b) The authorized share capital of the Company be altered by increasing the authorized number of Class “A” Preference shares
without par value from 100,000,000 to an unlimited number;

(c) the Notice of Articles of the Company be altered to refiect the alterations authorized by paragraphs (a) and (b) of this
resolution;

(d) any one director or officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute and deliver all such documents and
instruments, including the Notice of Alteration reflecting the removal of the Pre-existing Company Provisions, and to do such
further acts as may be necessary to give full effect to this special resolution; and

(e) the board of directors of the Company is hereby alrchori;ed, at any time in its sole discretion, to determine whether or not to
proceed with this resolution in whole or in part without further approval, ratification or-confirmation by the shareholders of the
Company™.

This special resolution must be approved by a majority of three-quarters (3/4) of the votes cast by the shareholders of the
Company who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy at the Meeting in respect of such special resolution.

The form of the proposed resolution set forth above is subject to such amendments as management may propose at the Meeting
but which do not matena]]y aﬁ'ect the substance of the proposed specml resolutlon S

The Company’s board of dlrectors recommends that shareholders vote .in’ favor of the forepoing special resolution.
Proxies received in favor of management will be voted in favor of such special resolution, unless the shareholder has
specified in the proxy that the shares are to be voted against such resolution. -

Other Matters

The management does not know of any other matters to come before the Meeting other than those referred to in the Notice of
Meeting. Should any other matters properly come before the Meeting, the shares represented by the Proxy solicited hereby will
be voted on such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the persons voting the Proxy

Additional Informatlon

Additional information relating to the Company is on the SEDAR website. at www sedar.com. Financial information is
provided in the Company’s comparative financial statements and MD&A . for its most recently completed financial year.
Shareholders may request copies of the Company’s ﬁnancnal statements and MD&A by contactmg the Company at 1254, 1030
Denman Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6G 2M6. ERR IR

The Company’s dlsclosure of 1ts corporate govemance pmcuces in Eorm 58 101F2 is mcluded as Appendix “B” to this
Information Circular.

Board Approval
The content and sending of thls ‘Infonnlalti'oo Cu‘cularhasbeen approved-bSr ttre Goropany’s Board of Directors. )
Certiﬁoate | o 7 | R e R

The foregoing contains no untrue statements of a material fact and does not omit to state a'material fact that is required to be
stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in the light of the circumstances in which it was made.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (ALBERTA), THE SECURITIES REGULATION (ALBERTA) AND
THE ALBERTA SECURITIES COMMISION RULES (TOGETHER THE “ALBERTA ACT”) FOR A PERSON OR
COMPANY TO MAKE A STATEMENT IN A DOCUMENT REQUIRED TO BE FILED OR FURNISHED UNDER THE
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ALBERTA ACT THAT, AT THE TIME AND IN THE LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT IS
MAKE, IS A MISREPRESENTATION. '
DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, this 31% day of January, 2007.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“John L. Carswell”

John L. Carswell, CE.O., CF.O & President

e




APPENDIX “A”
Changes under the Proposed New Articles of Kelso Technologies Inc.

Set out below is a discussion of changes reflected under the Company’s proposed New Articles, including a discussion of
substantive changes included in the New Articles and changes included that are as a result of changes under the New Act. The
New Articles incorporate a number of non-substantive changes, including the use of the new terminology adopted under the
New Act. For example, “members” are now “shareholders” and “register of members” is now “central securities register”.
Many of these terminology and wording changes are not discussed in detail here as they reflect statutory requirements that the
Company cannot alter or amend.

The following is a discussion of the substantive changes proposed in the New Articles.
Special Majority for Resolutions

Under the Former Act and the Existing Articles, the majority of votes required to pass a special resolution at a general meeting
of shareholders was not:less than three-quarters (3/4) of the votes cast on a resolution. Under the New Act, the Company is
authorized to determine whether a special resolution requires not less than two-thirds (2/3) or not less than three-quarters (3/4)
of the votes cast on a resolution. The New Articles propose that a special resolution require a majority of not less than two-
thirds (2/3) of the votes cast on a resolution.

Resolutions Required

Under the New Act, the Company is, subject to shareholder approval, now permitted in its New Articles to set out the type of
approval required for certain corporate changes. This change in the New Act reflects an increasing need for companies to react
and adapt to changing business conditions and to have a system in place that allows for quick responses. Under the New Act, a
Company may choose different thresholds of support for specific resolutions, including changes such as alterations to share
capital, the subdivision and consolidation of shares and company name changes. Changes such as the alteration of share capital
and name changes were previously required under the Former Act to be approved by 2 special resolution of the shareholders of
a company. Traditionally, where these changes are proposed between annual general meetings of shareholders, the Company
would be required to hold a special general meeting to have the change approved. This is expensive for the Company and
results in time delays and costs. As a result, the board of directors of the Company is proposing that the New Articles provide
that the Company may, subject to the New Act, alter its Notice of Articles, New Articles and share structure in the following
manner:

1. by directors’ resolution or ordinary resolution (being a simple majority of the votes cast by shareholders on a resolution), as
determined in each case by the directors, to:

(a) create one or more classes or series of shares and, if none of the shares of a class or series are allotted or issued, eliminate
that class or series of shares;

(b) establish, increase, reduce or eliminate the maximum number of shares that the Company is authorized to issue out of any
class or series of shares; and

(c) authorize alterations to the New Articles that are procedural or administrative in nature or are matters that pursuant to the
New Articles are solely within the directors’ powers, control or authority.

Directors’ Authority to Set Auditor’s Remuneration

Under the New Act, the Company is, subject to shareholder approval, permitted to include in the New Articles authorization for
the directors to set the remuneration paid to the auditor of the Company. The Former Act required the shareholders to set the
remuneration or the shareholders to authorize, on an annual basis, the directors to set the remuneration. Historically,
shareholders of the Company have always authorized the directors to set the auditor’s remunetration. As a result, the inclusion
of the authority for directors to set the auditor’s remuneration in the New Articles merely codifies existing practice. More
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importantly, however, this change also codifies new corporate governance rules and regulations relating to audit committees and
the appointment and remuneration of auditors.

Share Certificates

Under the Existing Articles, a shareholder is entitled to a share certificate representing the number of shares of the Company the
shareholder holds. Under the New Act, a shareholder is now entitled to a share certificate representing the number of shares of
the Company the shareholder holds or a written acknowledgement of the shareholder’s right to obtain such a share certificate.

" As a result, the New Articles have been amended to provide for this additional right. The addition of the ability to issue a
written acknowledgement is very useful for pubhc companies such as the Company since it permits flexibility in corporate and
securities transactions.

Dividends

Under the New Act, a company may pay dividends out of profits, capital or otherwise. This is a significant change from the
situation as it existed under the Former Act, which was silent on the issue and did not contain rules comparable to those set out
in the New Act governing the payment of dividends. As a result, payment of dividends by companies under the Former Act was
governed by the common law, which provided that dividends were payable out of profits only, and not out of capital or
otherwise. In order to provide greater flexibility to the Company, the New Articles contain provisions that permit the Company
to pay dividends in the manner permitted under the New Act.

Residency of Directors

Under the Former Act, the majority of directors of a company had to be residents of Canada with at least one director being a
resident of British Columbia. The New Act no longer specifies residency requirements for directors of a oompany Accordingly,
the New Articles do not Speclfy any residency requirements for the Company s directors.

Disclosure o!’ Interests of Directors and Senior Officers

Under the New Act, the provisions relating to the disclosure of interests by directors have been revised and updated. Under the
Former Act, a director of a company was required to disclose the nature and extent of the director’s direct or indirect interest in
any proposed confract or transaction involving the company. The New Act expands the application of the disclosure
requirement to include senior officers of 2 company, but inserts a two-fold materiality test as the threshold for disclosure by a
director or senior officer: (a) the proposed contract or transaction must be material to the company; and (b) the director or senior
officer of the company must either: (i} have a material interest in such proposed contract or transaction; or (ii) if such director
or senior officer is a director or senior officer of (or has a material interest in) an entity, and that entity has a material interest in
the proposed contract or transaction. All directors and senior officers of a company are bound by these new provisions. The
New Articles incorporate by reference these provisions of the New Act. .

Directors’ Meetings

Under the New Act, the provisions relating to directors’ meetings have been revised and updated to allow directors to
participate by telephone or other communication mediums as long as the directors are able to communicate with each other. The
New Articles have been drafted to broaden the ability of directors to participate in meetings through other communication
mediums to allow directors who may not be able to attend in person to still participate in meetings of the directors. In addition,
the New Articles have been updated 1o allow directors to receive notices of meetings by electronic means, which allows for
quicker and more efficient communication with directors of the Company.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Under the Former Act, a company could only indemnify directors where it obtained prior court approval, except in certain
limited circumstances. The Existing Articies permit the Company to indemnify directors, subject to the requirements of the
Former Act. Under the New Act, a company is now permitted to indemnify a past or present director or officer without
obtaining prior court approval in respect of an “eligible proceeding”. An “eligible proceeding” includes any legal proceeding
relating to the activities of the individual as a director, former director, officer or former officer of a company. Under the New
Act, however, a company will be prohibited from paying an indemnity if:




Ay WA prE R iR AT TR A Ad R T R TR ame|e o e e m e s e e memem e mmmmme e e m e e T T e d

(b) the proceeding was not a civil proceeding and the party did not have reasonable grounds for believing that his or her conduct
was lawful; and

(c) the proceeding is brought against the party by the company or an associated corporation.

As a result, the New Articles provide that the Company will indemnify past and present directors and officers of the Company,
subject to the limits imposed under the New Act. The board of directors of the Company believes that it is in the best interests
of the Company to indemnify past and present directors and officers, subject to the limits and conditions of the New Act.

Delivery of Documents to Shareholders

As aresult of changes under the New Act, the New Articles now permit the delivery of documents to a shareholder by facsimile
" transmission, email and any other method permitted under securities legislation. This change reflects recent developments under
securities legislation. As part of its efforts to modemize and adopt new, less expensive methods of shareholder communication,
the board of directors of the Company believes that it is in the best interests of the Company to allow for facsimile transmission,
email and other permitted methods of delivery of documents to shareholders. As a result, the New Articles propose to allow the
Company to deliver documents tc shareholders by facsimile transmission, email and other methods permitted under securities
legislation.

Location of Shareholder Meetings

Under the Former Act, annual general meetings were required to be held in British Columbia or at such other location as may be
approved by the Registrar of Companies upon application by a company. Under the New Act, as long as it is provided for in a
company’s articles, companies may hold their shareholder meetings inside or outside of British Columbia. The New Articles
specifically allow the directors to authorize, by directors’ resolution, the holding of the Company’s shareholder meetings
anywhere in North America.
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Appendix “B”

Form 58-101 F2 S
Corporate Governance Disclosure :
(Venture Issuers)

The following is a summary of the Company’s corporate governance disclosure required by Form 58-101F2 of National
Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices.

Board of Directors

The Board, at present, is composed of four directors, one of whom is an executive officer of the Company and three of
whom are considered to be “independent”, as that term is defined in applicable securities legislation. Messts Blair L.
Qualey, William E. Troy and Andrew R, Male are considered to be independent directors. Mr. John L. Carswell, by
reason of his being the President, CEQ and CFO of the Company, is not. In determining whether a director is
independent, the Board chiefly considers whether the director has a relationship which could be perceived to mterfere
with the director’s ability to objectively assess the performance of management. :

The Board is responsible for approving long-term strategic plans and annual operating plans and budgets recommended
by management. Board consideration and approval is also required for material contracts and business transactions, and
all debt and equity financing transactions. :

The Board delegates to management responsibility for meeting. defined .corporate objectives, implementing approved
strategic and operating plans, carrying on the Company’s business in the ordinary course, managing the Company’s cash
flow, evaluating new business opportunities, recruiting staff and complying with applicable regulatory requirements. The
Board also looks to management to furnish recommendations respecting corporate objectives, long-term strategic plans
and annual operating plans. -

Directorships

Certain of the directors of the Company are also directors of other reporting tssuers (or equlvalent) in a jurisdiction or a
foreign jurisdiction as follows: ‘

Name of Director Other reporting issuer (or equivalent in a foreign jurisdiction)

Andrew R. Male Director of TSX.V Sola Resource Corp., U.S Issuer Cosco ESP

Inc. and TSX.V Canasia Industries Corporation

Orientation and Continuing Education .

The Company has not yet developed an official orientation or training program for new directors. As required, new
directors will have the opportunity to become familiar with the Company by meeting with the other directors and with
officers and employees. Orientation activities will be tailored to the particular needs and expenence of each director and
the overall needs of the Board. :

Ethical Business Conduct

The Board monitors the ethical conduct of the Company and ensures that it complies with applicable legal and regulatory
requirements, such as those of relevant securities commissions and stock exchanges. The Board has found that the
fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by the Company’s governing corporate legislation and the common law, as
well as the restrictions placed by applicable corporate legislation on the individual director’s participation in decisions of
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management and in the best interests of the Company.

Nomination of Directors

The Board has not appointed a nominating committee because the Board fulfils these functions.

Compensation

The Company does not have a compensation committee as the Board of Directors is responsible for determining all forms
of compensation, including long-term incentive in the form of stock options, to be granted to the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and the directors, and for reviewing the Chief Executive Officer’s recommendations respecting
compensation of the other officers of the Company, to ensure such arrangements reflect the responsibilities and risks
associated with each position. When determining the compensation of its officers, the Board considers: i) recruiting and
retaining executives critical to the success of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder value; i) providing fair
and competitive compensation; iii) balancing the interests of management and the Company’s shareholders; and iv)
rewarding performance, both on an individual basis and with respect to operations in general.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board has appointed an Audit Committee the members of which are the following: John L. Carswell, Blair L.
Qualey, and William E. Troy.

A description of the function of the Audit Committee can be found in this Information Circular under Audit Committee.

Assessments

The Board has not, as yet, adopted formal procedures for assessing the effectiveness of the Board, its Audit Committee or
individual directors.




Kelso Technologies Inc
Unit 125 A - 1030 Depman Street
Vancouver, British Columbia, V6G 2M6

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF AUDITOR
(the “Notice”)

TO: STEINGARTEN SCHECHTER & CO., Chartered Accountants
ANDTO: SMYTHE RATCLIFFE, Chartered Accountants

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN thai, on the advice of the Audit Committee of Kelso Technologies
Inc. (the “Company™), the Directors of the Company resolved as of November 23, 2006 that:

1. The resignation of Steingarten Schechter & Co. on November 23, 2006, as auchtor of the
Company be accepted, and

2. Effective November 23, 2006, Smythe Ratcliffe, Chartered Accoumiants, be appointed as
auditor of the Company until the next annual meeting at a remuneration to be fixed by the Directors.

In accordance with National Instrument 51 102 Contmuous Dzsclosure Obl:ganons (“N'I 51-102"") we
confirm that

(a) Steingarten Schechter & Co. resigned as Mor of the Company and consequently the
Company has appointed Smythe Ratcliffe with offices at Suite 700, Marine Building, 355
Burrard Street, Vancouvcr BC, V6C 2G8; -

(b) the resxgnanon of Stemgarten Schechter & Co a.nd appomunent of Smythe Ratcliffe as auditor
of the Company were considered and approved by the Audit Committee of the Company;

(c)  Steingarten Schechter & Co. has not expressed any reservation in its reports for the two most
recently completed fiscal years of the Company, nor for the period from the most recently
completed period for which Steingarten Schechter & Co. issued an audit report in respect of the
Company’s financial statements and the date of this Notice;

(d  in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, no “reportable event” as defined in NI 51-102
has occurred in connection with the audits of the two most recently completed fiscal years of
the Company, nor any period from the most recently completed period for which Steingarten

Schechter & Co. issued an audit report in respect of the Company’s financial statements and the
date of this Notice; and

(6) this Notice and Auditor’s Letters have been reviewed by the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee of the Company.

Dated as of the 23rd day of November, 2006.

KELSO OJLOGIES INC

Per:

3 W_ Carswell, Chief Executive Officer . -

1323960.1
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7™ Floor, Marine Building
355 Burrard Street

Vancouver, BC V6C 2G8

January 17, 2007 Sﬂ‘lytheRatdiffe

CHARTFRFD ACCOUNTANTS

fax: 604.688.4675
telephone: 604.687.1231

British Columbia Securities Commission
5 Floor, 701 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V7Y 1.2

Alberta Securities Commission
4 Floor, 300 Fifth Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 3C4

Dear Sirs:

RE: KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC. (THE “COMPANY")

We are writing in accordance with Section 4.11(5Xa)(i) of National Instrument 51-102
Continuous Disclosure Obligations (*NI 51-1027). We wish to confirm that we have read
the Notice of Change of Auditor of the Company dated November 23, 2006 and that
based on our current knowledge we are in agreement with the information contained in
such Notice. . s C :

Yours very truly,l
“Smythe Ratcliffe LLP”
Chartered Accountants

DW/sl/100940 - -
Encls. ‘ :

cc: Kelso Technologies Inc.
Steingarten Schechter & Co.

Smythe Ratcliffe LLP,  British Columbia limitec iability partnership, is a member of PKF North American Network A Member of PKF interational
and PKF International, associations of legally independent firms. .




Steingarten Schechter & Co.

A Indcpendent Member of Baker Tilly Internalional

Chartered Accountants’

£00 - 650 West Genrpia Strect, FO Box 11588, Vancouver. British Columbia V6B 4NB  Phone: (604) 606-1588  Fax: (604) 633- 1606
1600 - 220 Portge Aveous. Winnipeg. Masitoba R3C 0AS Phane: (20d) 956-101)  Forc{204) 9491411

December 5, 2006

British Columbia Securities Commission
P.O. Box 10142, Pacific Centre

701 West Georgia Stieet

Vancouver, British Columbia

V7Y 1L2 : :

Alberta Securities Commission
4" Floor, 300 - 5™ Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta :
T2P 3C4

Dear Sirs:

Re: _Change of Mfor of Kelse Technologies Inc. {the “Company"}

We acknowledge receipt of a Notice of Change of Auditor (the *“Notice”) dated
‘December 5, 2006 given by the Company to ourselves and Smythe Ratcliffe, Chartered
Accountants.

Based on our information as of this.date, we agree with the statements set out in the
Notice.

Yours very truly,
mmGARTE% Co.
DMism -
enclosures

(o=



In accordance with the rules of National Instrument 51-102 "Continuous Disclosure Obligations”, effective March 30, 2004, a
reporting issuer must send annually a request form to the registered holders and to the beneficial owners of its securities, that
the registered holders and beneficial owners may use to request a copy of the reporting issuer’s annual financial statements
and Management Discussion & Analysis (“MD&A"), the interim financial statements and MD&A, or both. Please complete the
form below if you wish to receive the statement(s) this year.

You will not automatically receive copies of the financial statement(s) unless this card is completed and returned.
Copies of all previously issued annual and quarterly financial statements and related MD&A are available to the
public on the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com.

In order to benefit the environment by saving paper and reduce delivery expenses, we recommend that you select email as
your preferred method of communication and provide your current email address and your consent to electronic delivery. To
provide your consent, please complete the Consent to Electronic Delivery form available at
www._pcte.com/PCTCPortal/Public/ShareHolder.aspx. Holders that return this card in the mail and have requested deiivery
of statements via email must at some time prior to the mailing, complete the Consent Form at the above noted URL, or the
statements will be sent by mail.

|, the undersigned, certify that | am the owner of the securities (other than debt instruments) of'the Company shown below,
and request that my name be placed on the Company's Mailing List in respect of its quarterly and/or annual financial
statements and MD&A for the current financiai year.

KELSO TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Please select one or both of the following options: Annual Financial Statements & MD & A
Quarterly Financial Statements & MD & A

Name:
Address:
Street Name & Number ) Apt. or Suite
City Prov or State Counlry Postal or Zip Code
Email Address: Preferred Method of Communication: Email:____ orMail:______
*Signature: | Date:

PLEASE RETURN YOUR COMPLETED REQUEST FORM BY MAIL TO:
PACIFIC CORPORATE TRUST COMPANY

510 BURRARD STREET, 2'° FLOOR

VANCOUVER, BC

V6C 3B9

OR BY FAX TO: 604-689-8144

OR COMPLETE THE FORM ONLINE AT: www.pctc.com/PCTCPortal/Public/ShareHolder.aspx

* At Pacific Corporate Trust Company, we respect your privacy and we are committed to protecting your information.  The personal information you are
providing on this form will onty be used for its intended purpose described above, and will be handied in accordance with cur Privacy Policy, available on our
website at www._pctc.com, or by writing to us at the address shown above. PCTC will use the information that you arg providing on this form in order to
process your request and will treat your signature(s) on this form as your consent to the above.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF PROXY :

1. This Proxy is solicited .5 the Management of the Company.

2. This form of proxy (“Instrument of Proxy™) must be signed by you, the Shareholder, or by your attorney duly authorized by you in writirig, or, in the case of a corporation, by a duly
authorized officer or representative of the corporation; and if execufed by an attorney, officer, or other duly appointed representative, the original'or a notarial copy of the instrument so
empowering such person, or such other documentation in support as shall be acceptable to the Chairman of the Mecting, must accompany the Instrument of Proxy.

If this Instrument of Proxy is not dated in the space provided, authority is hereby given by you, the Shareholder, for the proxyholder to date this proxy seven (7) calendar days after the
date on which it was mailed to you, the Shareholder, by Pacific Corporate Trust Company or by the Company... : . . ‘

4. A Shareholder who wishes to atiend the Meeting and sa.n on the resolutions in person, may simply register with the scrutineers before the Meeting begins. .

5. A Shareholder who is pot able to attend the Meeting in person but EQ..«.... to vote on the resolutions, may do the following:

() appoint one of the management proxyholders named on the Instrument of Proxy, by leaving the s,ca_zm appointing a =o===nn asis : e. do not strike out the Bmsamoan.: -
proxyholders shown and do not complete the blank space provided for the appointment of an alternate proxyholder). Where no choice is specified by a Shareholder i:s respect 8 u N
resolution set out in the Instrument of Proxy, a management appointee acting as a proxyholder will vote the resolution as if the Shareholder had specified an mm._:smze_o vote, T

OR - .

(b} appoint another proxyholder, who need not be a Shareholder of the Company, to vote according to the Shareholder’s instructions, by striking out the Bmzmmn_”mn:n proxyholder
names shown and inserting the name of the person you wish to represent you at the Boo::m in the space provided for an alternate proxyholder. If no choice is munn_m& the _u_.ec\:c_n_nq :mm ;

* e

discretionary authority to vote as the E.oxw:c_anq sees fit, RS S

6. The securities represented by this Instriment af Proxy will be voted or withheld from voting In accordance with the Instructions of the holder on any ballot of a resolution that may be
called for and, if the holder specifies a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the securities will be voted accordingly. If 2 holder has submitted an Instrument of Proxy, the
holder may still attend the Meeting and may vote in person. To do so, the holder must record his/her attendance with :5 mo:_:unoa cnmo..o the 8333830& of Sn Zno::w and revoke,

in writing, the prior votes. AN i st

7. Further, the securities will be voted by the appointed proxyholder with respect to any amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting or other matters which may
properly come before the Meeting, as the proxyholder in its sole discretion sees fit.

8. To be represented at the 38::% proxies must be submitted no later =§= forty-eight (“48”) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, prior to the time of the .Zuo::m

or adjournment thereof.

VOTING METRODS <.

RETURN YOUR PROXY BY MAIL OR FAX to PACIFIC CORPORATE TRUST COMPANY
510 Burrard Street, 2" Floor, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3B9, Fax number 604-689-8144. Voting by mail or fax may be the only method for holdings held in the name of the

corporation or holdings voted on behalf of another individual. Do not mail the printed proxy or VIF if you have voted by internet or telephone,
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If this VIF is signed and the form is not marked otherwise, the securities will be voted in favour of each matter identified in the notice of meeting.

If this. VIF is not dated in-the space provided, authority is hereby given by you, the securityholder, for the proxyholder to date this form seven (7) calendar days afier the date
on which it was mailed to you, the securityholder.

This VIF confers discretionary authority to vote on such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

This VIF should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notice of meeting and information circular,

By providing voting instructions as requested, you are acknowledging that you are the beneficial owner of, and arc entitled to instruct us with respect to voting of, these
securities.

(If these voting instructions are given on behalf of a corporation, set out the full legal name of the corporation, the name and position of the person giving voting instructions
on behalf of the corporation and the address for service of the corporation.)To be represented at the Meeting, :

VIFs must be submitted no later than fort hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, prior to the time of the Meeting or adjournment
thereof.

##x#Plegse complete the following only if you or someone other than a8 management re resentative will be attending the meeting to vote on your behalf,****

IF YOU WISH TO:

A) VOTE IN PERSON AT THE MEETING or

B) APPOINT SOMEONE OTHER THAN THE MANAGEMENT PROXYHOLDERS NAMED IN THE MEETING MATERIAL
TO VOTE ON YOUR BEHALF, PRINT THE NAME OF PERSON WHO WILL BE ATTENDING THE MEETINGHERE:

SECURITYHOLDER SIGN HERE:

DATE SIGNED:

If you complete the above, a form of legal proxy will be issued which will grant you or the person specified by you the right to attend the meeting and vote. If you
require assistance in completing this form, please contact Dailas Chung at PCTC at 604-689-9853.
: : ’ (enter name of CSR here)

VOTING METHODS

RETURN YOUR PROXY BY MAIL OR FAX to Pacific Corporate Trust Company
510 Burrard Street, 2" Floor, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3B9. Fax number 604-689-8144. Voting by mail or fax may be the only method for holdings held in
the name of the corporation or holdings voted on behalf of another individual. Do not mail the printed proxy or VIF if you have voted by internet or telephone.

END



